COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
2017 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
To be held 6.00 pm, Thursday 2 November 2017
Officers Club,
St John's Green, Colchester CO2 7EZ
AGENDA

1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Adoption of the minutes of the 2016 AGM (Page 3)
The Board to adopt the minutes of the last AGM as an accurate record of the
meeting

3.

Notice of retirement and appointment of Board Members
Anne Grahamslaw, Chair of the Board

4.

Approval of the Annual Report
The Board to formally approve the Annual Report for 2016/17

5.

Adoption of the Financial Accounts (Page 5)
The Council to adopt the audited Financial Accounts for 2016/17

6.

Re-appointment of External Auditors
The Council to re-appoint Scrutton Bland

7.

Approval and Adoption of changes to CBH
Memorandum and Articles of Association (Page 43)
Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources
 Board to approve additional minor corrections (as minuted); and
 The Council to Approve the amended Memorandum and Articles; and
 CBH to adopt them with immediate effect

8.

Appointment of Vice Chairs of the Board
The Board to appoint up to two Vice Chairs
Candidates:
Mr. Alan Blois
Mr. Geoffrey Foster
Cllr Nigel Chapman

9.

Annual Resident Insight & Engagement Report (Page 123)
Kathy Fitzgerald, Housing Manager

Colchester Borough Homes Ltd is a company limited by guarantee, registered in England
and Wales, number 4843624. Registered office: 1st Floor, Rowan House, 33 Sheepen Road,
Colchester, Essex, CO3 3WG
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Colchester Borough Homes Limited
Minutes of Annual General Meeting
Tuesday 27 October 2016
At St John’s Church Community Centre,
St John’s Close, Colchester CO4 0HP
Present:
Anne Grahamslaw
Cllr Nigel Chapman
Alan Blois
Tina Graves
Geoff Foster
Glenn Houchell
Michala Carey
Cllr Cyril Liddy
Cllr Daniel Ellis
Julie Parker

1.

(Chair)
(Vice Chair)
(Vice Chair)

In Attendance:
Gareth Mitchell
Karen Loweman
Mark Wright Michael
Hadjimichael
Angelique Ryan
Matt Armstrong
Mell Robinson
Polly Hardy
Ria Eustace
Nikki Bedford
Claire Holland
Owen Howell
Matthew Sterling
Lynn Thomas
Observing:
Jan Sexton
Dawn Tibble
Michael Campbell
James Watson
Maura Broad

(minutes)
(CBC)
(CBC)
(TLCC)
(TLCC)
(TLCC)

Apologies and Quorum
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Mike Hogg and Dionne Philp. The
Chair confirmed that the meeting was quorate and welcomed guests, CBC
representatives and CBH staff.

2.

Confirmation of the minutes of the 2015 AGM
The minutes from the 2015 AGM were accepted.

3.

Decision as to the Re-appointment of Board Chair
Anne Grahamslaw left the meeting for this item. Cllr Nigel Chapman took the
Chair and asked for Board to approve the re-appointment of Anne Grahamslaw
for a second term as Chair of the CBH Board. The re-appointment was approved
unanimously.
Anne Grahamslaw re-joined the meeting.

4.

Approval of the Annual Report video
The 2016 Annual Report video was played for the meeting. Board approved the
video.
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5.

Adoption of the Financial Accounts
Matthew Sterling adopted and approved CBH’s 2015/16 Financial Statements.

6.

Re-appointment of External Auditors
Matthew Sterling confirmed that Scrutton Bland had been re-appointed as
external auditors to CBC and CBH.

7.

Confirmation of reappointment of Independent Board Member
The re-appointment of Glenn Houchell for a third term on the Board of CBH was
noted.

8.

Appointment of Vice Chairs of the Board
Cllr Nigel Chapman and Alan Blois were re-elected as Vice Chairs of the Board.

9.

Appointment of Chairs of Committees
Nominations had been received for the Chairs of the three committees. As no
nominations had been received for Chair of the Business Opportunities Panel,
Anne Grahamslaw was agreed as interim Chair. The following were appointed at
the AGM:
Business Opportunities Panel
Finance & Audit
Governance & Remuneration
Operations

-

Anne Grahamslaw (interim)
Nigel Chapman
Tina Graves
Alan Blois

The meeting closed at 5.38 pm.
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

2 November 2017

TIME:

6:00pm

VENUE:

Officers’ Club, St. John’s Green CO2 7EZ

AGENDA ITEM:

AGM Item 5

SUBJECT:

Adoption of the Financial Statements for 2016/17

REPORT BY:

Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources
 01206 507815
 Michael.hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR DECISION
1.

Decision Required

1.1

The Council is invited to formally approve the 2016/17 Financial Statements.

2.

Introduction

2.1

The Board scrutinised the Financial Statements on 20 July 2017 and agreed
that they could be signed as required and submitted to the Council for
approval.

2.2

The audited Financial Statements are available to the public on the
Colchester Borough Homes website.

2.3

A copy of the signed Annual Governance Statement was sent to the Council’s
Representative in advance of the AGM and was scrutinised by the Council’s
Governance Committee on 27 July 2017.
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Company Registration Number 04843624

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Financial Statements
31st March 2017
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Officers and Professional Advisers

The board of directors
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Strategic Report
Year ended 31st March 2017
The directors have pleasure in presenting their strategic report for the year ended
31st March 2017.
Principal activities and business review
The principal activity of the company during the period was the repair and improvement of
council properties, tenancy management, rent collection and arrears, and other property
management associated services.
The maintenance and repairs service contract with Colchester Borough Council (the
‘Council’) continued throughout the year.
Results
The initial surplus after tax, but before FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme adjustments
for the year was £51,516 (2016 : surplus £229,543). This resulted in a deficit of £674,484
(2016 : deficit £597,457) for the year, after adjustments for FRS 102 defined benefit pension
scheme.
The company has made a significant investment in the year, funded through business
efficiencies and reserves on a new Health and Safety system (£45,722) and a company-wide
initiative called ‘Working Smarter’ (£50,598) which is aimed at delivering further business
efficiencies and enhanced customer experience.
Financial risk management objectives and policies
The directors consider that the main risks to the company are that expenditure is not
controlled in line with the core funding provided by the ‘Council’. The company has
budgeting and management accounting procedures in place so as to control these risks.
The company is also exposed to the prospect of greater cash outflows in future years in
order to fund the deficit in the pension scheme, to the extent that this is not covered by
improved investment performance.
The company is assessed by various metrics applicable to similar housing organisations and
is looking to be in the upper quartile in the various cost and quality benchmarks. The main
key performance indicators include tenant satisfaction, the levels of overdue rents, the length
of time taken to re-let empty properties, customer satisfaction with repairs, and the length of
time taken to pay invoices.
The company retains sufficient cash for its working capital needs and does not use other
financial instruments for treasury management. The company therefore has very little
exposure to cash flow risk.
New legislation, in the form of “The Housing and Planning Act” and “Homelessness
Reduction Act” will have a significant effect on the way that the Company manages its
operations on behalf of the Council. This could lead to substantial additional costs to
maintain performance if not managed effectively. The Company is currently working with the
Council to identify the key areas of risk and putting in place arrangements to mitigate these
risks.

-2-
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Directors' Report
Year ended 31st March 2017
The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31st March
2017.
Matters covered in the strategic report
Financial risk management objectives and policies are disclosed in the strategic report.
Directors
The directors who served the company during the year were as follows:
Mr A Blois
Miss M Carey
Cllr N Chapman
Cllr D Ellis
Mr G Foster
Ms A Grahamslaw
Mrs C Graves
Cllr J Havis
Cllr M Hogg
Mr G Houchell
Cllr C Liddy
Cllr M Lilley
Cllr G Oxford
Miss J Parker
Miss D Philp

(appointed 17th June 2016)

(resigned 16th June 2016)
(appointed 17th June 2016)
(appointed 17th June 2016)
(resigned 16th June 2016)
(resigned 16th June 2016)

Directors' responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors' Report and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law). Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and of the surplus or deficit of the company for that period. In
preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

•

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

•

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

-4-
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Independent Auditor's Report to the Member of
Colchester Borough Homes Limited
Year ended 31st March 2017
We have audited the financial statements of Colchester Borough Homes Limited for the year
ended 31st March 2017 which comprise the Income Statement, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Equity,
Statement of Cash Flows, and the related notes numbered 1 to 15. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including
FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”.
This report is made solely to the company's member, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the company's member those matters we are required to state to the member
in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's
member as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibilities Statement set out on pages 4 to 5,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors.
Scope of the audit of the financial statements
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by directors; and the overall presentation of the financial
statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report to identify material inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements
or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Income Statement (including Income and Expenditure Account)
Year ended 31st March 2017

Note

Turnover
Staff costs
FRS 102 staff costs adjustment
Other operating charges

2017

2016

£

£

3

14,194,990 13,074,477

4
4/14f

(6,513,161) (6,303,655)
(522,000) (618,000)
(7,638,233) (6,553,377)
---------------------------------------------------

Operating deficit
Interest receivable
FRS 102 interest adjustment

5

(478,404)

(400,555)

14f

7,170
(204,000)

13,398
(209,000)

---------------------------------------------------

Deficit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on ordinary activities

(675,234)
6

750
---------------------------------------------------

Deficit for the financial year

---------------------------------------------------

(674,484)

---------------------------------------------------

(596,157)
(1,300)
---------------------------------------------------

(597,457)

==================================================

=================================================

51,516

229,543

(522,000)
(204,000)

(618,000)
(209,000)

The deficit for the financial year before and after adjustments
required under FRS 102 in respect of defined benefit pension
schemes is as follows:
Operating surplus after tax
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme charges:
Staff costs adjustment
Interest costs

-----------------------------------------------------

Deficit for the financial year

(674,484)
=====================================================

-----------------------------------------------------

(597,457)
===================================================

All of the activities of the company are classed as continuing.

The notes on pages 13 to 25 form part of these financial statements.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31st March 2017

Note

Deficit for the financial year

2017

2016

£

£

(674,484)

Actuarial losses/gains arising from pension liabilities

14b (6,969,000)

Difference between expected and actual return on
pension fund assets and other actuarial losses

14b

3,430,000
-----------------------------------------------

Total recognised gains and (losses) for the year

(4,213,484)
==========================================

(597,457)
1,655,000

(220,000)
-----------------------------------------------

837,543
==========================================

The notes on pages 13 to 25 form part of these financial statements.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31st March 2017

Defined
benefit
pension
scheme
reserve
At 1 April 2015

£

£

(6,443,000)

980,908

(5,462,092)

(827,000)

229,543

(597,457)

1,435,000

-

1,435,000

_________________

________________

________________

Other comprehensive income
for the year

(5,835,000)

1,210,451

(4,624,549)

(726,000)

51,516

(674,484)

(3,539,000)

-

(3,539,000)

Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

_________________

At 31 March 2017

Total

£

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

At 31 March 2016

Income and
expenditure
account
excluding
pension
reserve

(10,100,000)
===============================================

_________________

_________________

1,261,967

(8,838,033)

===============================================

===============================================

The notes on pages 13 to 25 form part of these financial statements.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31st March 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Deficit for the financial year
Interest received
Taxation
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
Increase/(decrease) in creditors
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
FRS 102 defined benefit pension
scheme adjustment

2017

2016

£

£

(674,484)
(7,170)
(750)
(221,145)
200,242
34,583

Cash from operations

726,000

827,000

_________________

_________________

57,276

Taxation paid

750
_________________

Net cash generated/(consumed) from operating
activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Net cash inflow from investing activities
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(597,457)
(13,398)
1,300
226,243
(500,751)
(1,700)

58,026

(58,763)
(1,300)
_________________

(60,063)

7,170

13,398

_________________

_________________

7,170

13,398

_________________

________________

65,196

(46,665)

1,343,311

1,389,976

_________________

_________________

1,408,507

1,343,311

================================================

============================================

The notes on pages 13 to 25 form part of these financial statements.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
1.

Accounting policies
Company information
Colchester Borough Homes Limited is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in
England and Wales. Its registered number is 04843624. The registered office is Rowan
House, 33 Sheepen Road, Colchester, Essex, CO3 3WG.
Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland’, with the Companies Act, and FRC Abstracts.
The financial statements are presented in Sterling (£) and are rounded to the nearest
£1.
The financial statements show net assets before pension liabilities of £1,261,967
but net liabilities of £8,838,033 once the provision for pension liabilities is included. The
financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a going concern, on the
assumption that the core funding from the ‘Council’ in future years will enable the
increased pension contributions to be met.
After reviewing the company’s forecasts and projections, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources and support to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The company therefore
continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing its financial statements.
Turnover
Turnover principally comprises of income derived from the ‘Council’ and is stated
exclusive of Value Added Tax.
Income received from the ‘Council’ is for the management of Colchester Borough
Homes and also relates to specific projects for which the money is earmarked. Costs
are also recharged direct to the ‘Council’ in respect of additional property services work
outside the management fee.
Included in turnover is an amount of £4,913,996 (2016 : £3,745,573) which relates to the
recharging of property services costs incurred by the company. A property services
management fee of £4,795,448 was received in the year (2016 : £4,933,265).
Within turnover is also an amount of £22,000 (2016 : £22,000) relating to grants
received and redistributed in due course.
Debtors
Short term debtors are measured at the transaction price, less any impairment/provision
for irrecoverable amounts.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
1.

Accounting policies (continued)
Creditors
Short term creditors are measured at the transaction price.
Operating lease agreements
Rentals applicable to operating leases where substantially all of the benefits and risks of
ownership remain with the lessor are charged against income on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.
The benefits of lease incentives are recognised in the Income Statement over the lease
term on a straight line basis.
Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits
The company participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme, administered by
Essex County Council. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
company.
Pension scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using a projected unit
method and are discounted to their present value using a quality corporate bond rate.
Pension scheme assets are valued at fair value at the balance sheet date.
The pension scheme deficit is recognised in full on the balance sheet. There are no
deferred tax implications.
Provisions for liabilities and charges
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the company will be
required to settle the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
A provision has been included for the expected reinstatement costs of the company's
offices at the end of the lease.
The company recognises a provision for the annual leave accrued by employees as a
result of services rendered in the current period, and which employers are entitled to
carry forward. The provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of
absence.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
1.

Accounting policies (continued)
Bank balances
The company's bank balances are managed as part of the treasury operations of the
‘Council’. Each evening the balances are aggregated with those of the Council and
placed on overnight deposit.
Taxation
Any operating surplus of the company, before FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme
adjustments, arising from savings of overhead costs compared to the core funding
provided by the ‘Council’, is non-taxable. Taxation is chargeable only on the surplus
from its activities with other housing organisations.

2.

Judgements in applying accounting estimates and key sources of estimation
uncertainty
The preparation of the financial statements requires the company’s directors to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements. The key judgements and estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk
of causing material misstatement to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are those made in respect of the defined benefit pension scheme.
Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex
judgements relating to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to
increase, changes in retirement rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. An
independent firm of consulting actuaries has been engaged to provide expert advice
regarding the assumptions to be applied in the calculation of the defined pension
scheme liability, which at 31 March 2017 amounts to £10,100,000. Further details of the
assumptions made are disclosed in note 14.

3.

Turnover
The turnover and profit before tax are attributable to the one principal activity of the
company.
All turnover arose in the United Kingdom.
An analysis of turnover by class of business is given below:
2017

2016

£

£

14,194,990 13,074,477

Rendering of services

===================================================

- 15 -
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
4.

Particulars of employees
The average number of staff employed by the company during the financial year
amounted to:
2017
2016
89
Housing
95
76
Property services
86
26
Resources
22
13
Senior management
11
----------------------------------------------

204

Number of staff

==============================================

----------------------------------------------

214
==============================================

The aggregate payroll costs of the above were:
2017
£

2016
£

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Employer pension contributions
Redundancy payments

5,371,374
473,412
641,528
26,847
----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

FRS 102 defined benefit pension costs adjustment

6,513,161
522,000

6,303,655
618,000

5,289,278
356,710
639,344
18,323

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

7,035,161

6,921,655

==========================================

==========================================

The directors’ aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifying services was:
2017

2016

£

£

6,655
10,651

6,598
7,504

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

Chair remuneration
Board expenses

17,306

14,102

======================================

===========================================

The Chair of the Board is the only paid director, with the level of remuneration set by the
Governance and Remuneration Committee. Other directors are only reimbursed out of
pocket expenses.
5.

Operating deficit
The operating deficit is stated after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration - audit of the financial statements
Internal audit
Operating lease costs:
Other operating leases

2017

2016

£

£

13,450
23,483

12,100
23,305

416,372

391,995

======================================

===========================================

Internal audit relates to services provided by Mazars PSIA Limited.
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24

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
6.

Taxation on ordinary activities
Analysis of charge in the year
2017

2016

£

£

(750)

1,300

Current tax:
UK Corporation tax for the year at 20% (2016 : 20%)
Under provision in previous period

------------------------------------------

(750)

Total current tax

=====================================

------------------------------------------

1,300
====================================

The company is not subject to tax on its activities performed for the ‘Council’.
Corporation tax is charged on services provided to other housing associations.
7.

Debtors
2017

2016

£

£

1,254,454
13,336
27,710
111,755

The Council
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
VAT

---------------------------------------------

1,407,255
========================================

8.

1,139,983
12,087
34,040
-------------------------------------------------

1,186,110
=======================================

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year
2017

2016

£

£

114,258
1,142,419
95,945
76,420

PAYE and social security
VAT
Accruals and deferred income
Trade creditors
Other creditors

-------------------------------------------

1,429,042
======================================

- 17 -

100,137
186,634
761,161
103,727
77,141
-------------------------------------------

1,228,800
=======================================
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
9.

Other provisions

Provision for building reinstatement:
Balance brought forward
Movement for year

Environmental provision:
Balance brought forward
Movement for year

2017

2016

£

£

23,100
3,036

19,250
3,850

----------------------------------------

----------------------------------------

26,136

23,100

====================================

====================================

9,120
(4,940)
-------------------------------------------

4,180
====================================

Provision for privately leased building venture:
Balance brought forward
Movement for year

3,502
1,182
-------------------------------------------

4,684
Provision for holiday pay:
Balance brought forward
Movement for year

---------------------------------------------

9,120
========================================

3,220
282
-------------------------------------------

3,502

====================================

======================================

54,448
35,305

65,400
(10,952)

-------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------

89,753
====================================

124,753

Total provisions carried forward

4,000
5,120

====================================

54,448
====================================

90,170
=====================================

The holiday pay provision represents holiday balances accrued as a result of services
rendered in the current period and which employees are entitled to carry forward. The
provision is measured as the salary cost payable for the period of absence.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
10. Commitments under operating leases
At 31st March 2017 the company had total commitments under non-cancellable
operating leases as set out below.
Land & Buildings
2017
2016
£

Operating leases which expire:
Less than 1 year
Within 2 to 5 years
Over 5 years

£

187,990
646,110
269,750

187,240
639,960
434,640

=======================-===================

==========================================

Other
Operating leases which expire:
Less than 1 year
Within 2 to 5 years

2017

2016

£

£

114,685
61,089
====================================

216,221
134,923
=====================================

11. Related party transactions
The company is an Arms Length Management Organisation under the ultimate control
of the ‘Council’. The company is taking advantage of the exemption not to disclose
related party transactions with the ‘Council’ as the consolidated accounts of the ‘Council’
are publicly available.
Key management personnel received remuneration of £405,143 ( 2016 : £402,000).
12. Company limited by guarantee
The company is limited by guarantee and has no share capital. The liability of the
member, the ‘Council’, in the event of winding-up is limited to £1.
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COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
13. Income and expenditure account

2017
£

2016
£

Balance brought forward
Deficit for the year
Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect of the pension scheme

(4,624,549) (5,462,092)
(674,484)
(597,457)
(3,539,000) 1,435,000

Balance carried forward

(8,838,033) (4,624,549)

----------------------------------------------------==============================================

Being:
Defined benefit pension scheme reserve
Other

----------------------------------------------------==============================================

(10,100,000) (5,835,000)
1,261,967 1,210,451
-------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------

(8,838,033) (4,624,549)
=============================================

==============================================

The level of reserves the company can hold is capped at an amount determined by the
Council. If this is exceeded, the excess will be paid back to the Council at the end of the
financial year in which it occurred.
At 31st March 2017 there were committed reserves of £1,019,000 and uncommitted
reserves of £242,967.
.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
14. Pension commitments
(a) The assets and liabilities of the pension scheme and the expected rate of return at
31st March were:
2017
% of
scheme
assets

2016

Value

% of
scheme
assets

£

Equities
Bonds
Properties
Cash
Alternative assets
Other managed funds

68.3%
7.8%
9.7%
3.0%
6.7%
4.5%

Total market value of assets
Present value of scheme liabilities

Net estimated pension liability

18,582,000
2,135,000
2,647,000
819,000
1,814,000
1,209,000
------------------------27,206,000

Value
£

67.7%
7.7%
11.9%
3.2%
4.4%
5.1%

15,267,000
1,748,000
2,687,000
733,000
1,003,000
1,121,000
------------------------22,559,000

(37,306,000)

(28,394,000)

------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------

(10,100,000)

(5,835,000)

=====================================================

===================================================

(b) Asset and liability reconciliation:
2017

2016

£

£

Reconciliation of liabilities
Liabilities at start of period
Service cost
Interest cost
Employee contributions
Change in financial assumptions
Change in demographic assumptions
Experience gain on defined benefit obligation
Benefits paid
Liabilities at end of period

28,394,000 28,362,000
1,154,000
1,258,000
1,046,000
956,000
304,000
304,000
7,492,000
(1,655,000)
(260,000)
(263,000)
(561,000)
(831,000)
---------------------- ---------------------37,306,000 28,394,000
===================================================
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
14. Pension commitments (continued)
(b) Asset and liability reconciliation: (continued)
2017

2016

£

£

Reconciliation of assets
Assets at start of period
Interest on assets
Return on assets less interest
Other actuarial losses
Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits received
Administrative expenses

22,559,000 21,919,000
842,000
747,000
3,604,000
(220,000)
(174,000)
641,000
651,000
304,000
304,000
(561,000)
(831,000)
(9,000)
(11,000)
-------------------- --------------------------------------------------------27,206,000 22,559,000

Assets at end of period

==================================================

=====================================================

(c) Return on scheme assets:
The overall return on scheme assets is estimated to be 20% in 2016/17. This figure will
vary year on year depending on the assumptions made and the underlying distribution
of the fund’s assets which will vary during the year and as a result it is not appropriate to
break down the return on assets across the different asset categories. Actual returns on
scheme assets have been £4,272,000 for the year to 31st March 2017.
(d)

A full actuarial valuation was carried out for the defined benefit scheme at 31st March
2016 and updated to 31st March 2017 by Barnett Waddingham using the Projected unit
method. The major assumptions used by the actuary were:
2017
2016
%

Main assumptions:
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions in payment
Discount rate

- 22 -

4.2
2.7
2.8

%

4.2
2.4
3.7
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
14. Pension commitments (continued)
(e) Movement in deficit during the year:

At 1st April 2016
Current service cost
Net interest cost
Actuarial (losses)/gains
Employer contributions
Administrative costs

(note 14(b))

2017

2016

£

£

(5,835,000) (6,443,000)
(1,154,000) (1,258,000)
(204,000)
(209,000)
(3,539,000) 1,435,000
641,000
651,000
(9,000)
(11,000)
----------------------------------------------------

At 31st March 2017

----------------------------------------------------

(10,100,000) (5,835,000)
==============================================

================================================

The Council supports the annual pension contributions due from Colchester Borough
Homes, including the back funding, through the management fee.
FRS 102 disclosures are not on the same basis as the triennial actuarial review of the
pension fund valuation and the two are for different purposes. These disclosures are a
one off assessment at the year end for accounting disclosure purposes. The FRS 102
calculations are more prescriptive. At the current time they emphasise the liabilities and
produce a balance sheet position worse than the triennial valuation position.
While the figure is substantial it should be remembered that:

• It is not an immediate deficit that has to be met now. The sum is the current
assessment taking a long term view of the future liabilities both for existing
pensioners and current employees who are accruing pension entitlement.

• It is not a problem unique to Colchester Borough Homes or indeed ALMOs
generally. There is a national problem for pension funds both private and public
sector.

• The Essex County Council Pension Fund is regularly reviewed and additional

contributions have already been initiated to address the problem over a period of
years.
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
14. Pension commitments (continued)
(f)

Analysis of the amount charged to the income and expenditure account:
2017
£

Current service cost
Employer contributions
Administration Costs

2016
£

1,154,000
(641,000)
9,000

1,258,000
(651,000)
11,000

---------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------

FRS 102 adjustment
522,000

618,000

==========================================

========================================

Analysis of amounts charged to finance costs:
2017
£

Other finance costs: expected return on assets in
the scheme
Other finance costs: interest costs

842,000
(1,046,000)
---------------------------------------------------

Net cost

(204,000)
==========================================

2016
£

747,000
(956,000)
---------------------------------------------------

(209,000)
==============================================

During the year to 31 March 2017 the employer contribution rate was 14%. This has
risen to 16.6% with effect from 1 April 2017.
(g) Life assumptions:
2017

2016

Current pensioner aged 65
male
female

22.1
24.6

22.9
25.3

Future pensioner aged 65 in 20 years time
male
female

24.3
26.9

25.2
27.7

Life expectancy:

- 24 -

32

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year ended 31st March 2017
15. Financial Instruments
2017
£

Financial assets which are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost

£

£ 1,267,790 £ 1,152,070
==========================================

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

2016

£ 1,301,784
==========================================

==============================================

£ 928,429
==============================================

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise balances due from the Council
and other debtors.
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, other creditors
and accruals.
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Management Information
Year ended 31st March 2017

The following pages do not form part of the statutory financial statements
which are the subject of the independent auditor's report on pages 6 to 7.
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Notes to the Detailed Income Statement
Year ended 31st March 2017
2017
£

Turnover
Management fee
Property services and recharges
Grant income
Other income

2016
£

£

8,947,948
4,913,996
22,000
311,046

9,125,890
3,745,573
22,000
181,014

---------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------

14,194,990 13,074,477
Operating costs (before FRS 102 defined
benefit pension scheme adjustment)
Staff costs
Other operating charges

6,513,161
7,638,233

6,303,655
6,553,377

---------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------

14,151,394 12,857,032
Operating surplus
Interest on management fee
Surplus on ordinary activities
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme
staff cost adjustments
FRS 102 defined benefit pension scheme
interest adjustment

---------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------

43,596
7,170

217,445
13,398

--------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------

50,766

230,843

(522,000)

(618,000)

(204,000)
---------------------------------------------------

Deficit on ordinary activities post FRS 102
defined benefit pension scheme
adjustment and pre taxation

(675,234)
==============================================
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2017
£

Staff costs
Salaries
Employers national insurance contributions
Staff pension contributions
Redundancy payments

2016
£

5,371,374
473,412
641,528
26,847

5,289,278
356,710
639,344
18,323

----------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------

6,513,161
522,000

FRS 102 pension costs adjustment

Other operating charges
Establishment expenses:
Rent, rates, water and management fees
Light and heat
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Other establishment expenses

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

6,921,655

==========================================

==============================================

283,845
8,204
91,400
32,287
63,672

--------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------

490,488

13,819
71,685
113,995
7,848
89,628
22,470
4,251
22,000
9,213
580,446
23,483
13,450
5,962
26,088
437,903
256,987
5,348,779
50,598
45,430
2,649

-----------------------------------------------

7,146,684
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479,408

9,204
81,357
132,011
5,484
134,336
36,206
36,269
22,000
11,487
476,411
23,305
12,100
8,044
42,409
(1,178)
453,582
237,607
4,352,211
-

----------------------------------------------

Financial costs:
Bank charges

6,303,655
618,000

7,035,161

304,092
9,519
109,284
2,883
64,710

General expenses:
Travel and subsistence
Telephone
Publicity, printing, postage and stationery
Staff subscriptions
Staff training
Other staff related expenses
Recruitment
Grants
Catering
Support services
Internal auditors remuneration
Auditors remuneration
Accreditation expenses
Consultancy, support and subcontract costs
Bad debts
Materials, repairs and equipment
Motor expenses
Sub contractors
Working smarter project
Assure
Provisions

£

6,072,845

1,061

1,124

----------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------

7,638,233

6,553,377

=========================================

===========================================
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COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
Annual Governance Statement
Year ended 31st March 2017
1. Scope of Responsibility
Colchester Borough Homes (CBH), formed in October 2003, is the Arms-Length
Management Organisation of Colchester Borough Council (CBC), responsible for the
management and maintenance of the Council's homes and transferred general fund
services. In 2016/17, these were primarily financed from the Council through a
Management Fee of £8,947,948. This fee also includes Property Services professional
fees, Corporate Facilities management fee and CBH Revenue work costs. Property
Services also manages capital and revenue work costs paid directly by CBC, totalling
£6,962,000.
There is a formally binding Management Agreement between the Council and CBH in
place until August 2023, with a review in 2020. This clearly sets out the governance
arrangements that should apply between the two parties and complies with national best
practice.
CBH is managed by a Board comprising four Council nominees, four tenants and four
independent members. In discharging this overall responsibility, Colchester Borough
Homes is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the governance of its
affairs and facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements
for the management of risk. Three committees report to the Board: Finance & Audit,
Governance & Remuneration and Operations. Additionally, there is also a Business
Opportunities Panel. These all have formal, approved terms of reference, which are
reviewed biennially.
2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework
Good governance leads to good management, good performance, good stewardship,
good public engagement and ultimately good outcomes for citizens and the service user.
Good governance enables the Company to pursue its vision effectively, as well as
underpinning that vision with mechanisms for control and management of risk.
The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by
which the Company is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts
to, engages with and serves the community. It enables the Company to monitor the
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led
to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.
The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and objectives and can therefore only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance
of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process,
designed to:
•

identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Company’s policies, aims
and objectives

•

to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised

•

to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.
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The governance framework has been in place at Colchester Borough Homes for the year
ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of approval of the financial statements of
accounts.
Colchester Borough Homes exercises control through:
•

Corporate governance arrangements outlined in the Memorandum & Articles of
Association, the Code of Governance and the Standing Financial Instructions.

•

The employment of suitably qualified and experienced staff to take responsibility
for key areas of the business. This is supported by a formal annual appraisal
system.

•

The preparation of forecasts and budgets that allow the committees and the
executive officers to monitor the key business risks and financial objectives, and
identify variances arising during the monthly reporting cycle.

•

Business planning is based on a 3 year Medium Term Development Plan that
sets out key actions to enable CBH to achieve its goals for the ensuing year. This
cascades through supporting Service Plans and individual performance
appraisals. The key aims for 2017/18 are:
 Maximise the supply of housing to meet local needs.
 Work with partners and residents to create mixed and sustainable
communities which are economically, environmentally and socially healthy
and resilient.
 Prevent homelessness and rough sleeping.
 Improve the life chances of Colchester’s residents including their health
and wellbeing.
 Work with customers to enable them to make informed choices about their
housing options.
 Make the best use of existing homes.
 Provide healthy, safe and energy efficient homes.
 Ensure that housing and related services meet a range of specialist
needs.
 Manage and improve the Council’s corporate assets.
 Ensure customers are at the heart of everything we do.
 Make the most of resources and opportunities.

The Executive Management and the Board carry out regular review of performance
against objectives and targets detailed in the Medium Term Delivery Plan.
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Annual Governance Statement
Year ended 31st March 2017
3. Review of Effectiveness
Colchester Borough Homes conducts, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of
its governance framework, including the system of internal control that is in place, and to
ensure it is appropriate to support the company’s objectives. The review of effectiveness
is informed by the work of the Executive Officers and Senior Management Team within
the Company, who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
governance environment. This is supported by the Internal Audit’s annual report, and by
comments made by external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.
The company produces a Medium Term Delivery Plan every three years, which is
refreshed every year. From this plan, Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) and projects
are produced. A performance and scrutiny framework is in place to review and
monitor delivery against these. This is a combination of company, tenants and CBC
scrutiny as well as benchmarking against other providers.
CBH’s internal arrangements for ensuring the effectiveness of its governance
arrangements consist of:
•

The Operations Committee receiving quarterly performance reports.

•

The Governance & Remuneration Committee monitoring the implementation
of the Governance Action Plan and significant staffing matters.

•

The Finance & Audit Committee considering Internal Audit reports throughout
the year, reviewing how well strategic risks are identified and managed, and
monitoring financial performance against budgets.

•

The Finance & Audit Committee monitoring the regular review of key policies
against an agreed policy review timetable.

•

The production and approval of annual Manager Assurance Statements by
service directors and their teams to assess compliance with key governance
processes throughout the year.

Internal Audit
Internal Audit is delivered through a contract with Mazars LLP (Mazars). A five-year riskbased Strategic Audit Plan was initially approved by the Finance and Audit Committee in
June 2016, following the successful re-appointment of Mazars in April 2016. This is
refreshed on an annual basis in consultation with the Directors Management Team. The
updated plan was approved by the Finance & Audit Committee in June 2017.
The audit plan was delivered, with reports issued to senior managers at the conclusion of
each audit highlighting internal control weaknesses identified and the actions required to
address them. Recommendations were also reviewed to ensure they were implemented
properly by the due date. Reports were presented to each Finance & Audit Committee of
progress against the audit plan as well as the status of outstanding recommendations.
The Head of Internal Audit prepares an annual Head of Internal Audit Opinion (HOIA)
report that includes an overall opinion on CBH’s internal control environment based on
the results of the audit work completed. This was considered by the June 2017 Finance &
Audit Committee.
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Internal Audit performance is subject to annual review by the external auditor of CBH in
order that they can place reliance on its audit work. The Company provided the Council
with the following assurance regarding the robustness of its governance arrangements
during the year:
•

Internal Audit reports.

•

Summary results of Manager Assurance Statements.

•

The Annual Report, which incorporates the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report
(including an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s systems of internal
control).

External Audit
External Audit of the annual financial statements is undertaken by Scrutton Bland LLP
with a view to expressing an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
In carrying out the audit work, Scrutton Bland LLP will consider whether the financial
statements are free from ‘material misstatement’. Materiality is an expression of the
relative significance of a particular matter in the context of the financial statements as a
whole. An item will normally be considered material if its omission would reasonably
influence the decisions of those using the financial statements.
Scrutton Bland LLP will issue a report to management at the conclusion of the audit work.
This will include a management letter that will contain comments and recommendations
for improvements in operations and internal control in respect of the Company. This will
be discussed with management prior to the issue of the final report. The report will also
include details of significant adjusted and unadjusted items that arise as a result of the
audit work.
The Finance & Audit Committee considers the external auditor’s report and recommends
adoption of the financial statements to the Board.
4. Significant Governance Issues from 2015/16 - Update
In the 2015/16 Annual Report it was stated the need to carry out a disaster recovery test,
which was already overdue. Two tests were carried out in the year:
•
•

Communications Test
IT Access Test

A testing plan is currently being developed with a couple of key operational tests earmarked to take place in 2017/18.
In addition, the Business Continuity Plan (BCP) was formally reviewed and approved by
Executive Management in March 2017. This was also subject to an Internal Audit
Review which was reported to the June 2017 Finance and Audit Committee. CBH is
working closely with CBC to ensure all BCP’s across the two organisations are aligned,
due to close reliance on each other should the plan need to be activated.
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

DATE:

2 November 2017

TIME:

6:00pm

VENUE:

Officers’ Club, St. John’s Green CO2 7EZ

AGENDA ITEM:

AGM 7

SUBJECT:

Approval of Changes to CBH Memorandum and Articles of
Association

REPORT BY:

Michael Hadjimichael, Director of Resources
 01206 507815
 Michael.hadjimichael@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR DECISION
1.

Purpose

1.1

For the Board of CBH to approve minor corrections to the amended
Memorandum and Articles of Association (Mem & Arts), as identified after the
Board approved the draft amended Mem & Arts (by electronic decision) for
submission to Colchester Borough Council. These are in addition to the
amendments agreed by Board as part of the aforementioned electronic
decision.

1.2

For the Council to approve the special resolution to make identified revisions
to CBH’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, as requested by the
Board of CBH and including those minor corrections mentioned at 1.1 above.

2.

Background & Summary

2.1

The CBH Board at its meeting on 20 July 2017, approved the proposal:
 To reduce the current Board size from 12 to 9, but to have the flexibility
to increase the number if Board deem necessary.
 To enable the appointment of Executive Officer(s) to the Board.
 To ensure that residents continue to have significant and equal
representation on the Board.

2.2

CBH and CBC have been in proactive dialogue for a number of months about
these proposed changes and they have been discussed with CBC’s Legal
Team.

2.3

In getting to this point:
 CBH have given all CBH Board Members an opportunity to review and
approve the proposed changes and special resolution
43




The Chief Executive and Leader of the Council have reviewed and
approved the amendments.
The key changes to the Mem & Arts have been made available on the
CBH website and residents have been given an opportunity to
comment (key questions will be brought to the AGM’s attention).

2.4

Subject to approval at the AGM, a copy of the CBC resolution to amend the
Mem & Arts must be filed with Companies House within 15 days of the AGM.

3.

Corrections and additions to make following Board approval of draft
Memorandum and Articles of Association
The following are corrections and supplementary information which have been
identified as being necessary, following Board’s approval of the original draft
amendments to the Mem & Arts. Decision required: Board must approve
these corrections and additions before Colchester Borough Council’s
representative can approve the Mem & Arts as a whole.
Memorandum

3.1

Two additional definitions to be added to Clause 11 (‘Definitions’) as follow:
e) “The Council” shall mean Colchester Borough Council or any
successor body thereto who shall be the sole Member of the
Organisation.
f) “The Member” shall mean the sole Member of the Organisation, which
is Colchester Borough Council or any successor body thereto.
Articles

3.2

The renumbering of Articles 13(7) to 13(10) is required as the amended
Articles do not currently include a 13(6). Thus 13(7) will become new 13(6)
and so on. The following references within the Articles will therefore also
change:
 In Articles 19(12) and 19(14), reference to now be made to Article 13(6)
rather than to 13(5)
 In Article 19(13), reference to now be made to Article 13(7) rather than
13(6).
 In Article 19(17) reference to now be made to 13(9) rather than to 13(10)

3.3

In Article 16(3), deletion of reference to 18(5) as 18(5) has been removed.

3.4

In Article 19(24), deletion of reference to 15(4) as 15(4) was removed in an
historical amendment of the Memorandum & Articles of Association.

3.5

In Article 19(10), replacement of erroneous reference to Article 19(9) with selfreference to Article 19(10).

4.

Financial Implications

4.1

There are minimal financial implications as the Chair of the Board is the only
Board Member remunerated.
44

5.

Value for Money Implications

5.1

A smaller number of Board and Committee meetings, will lead to
administrative efficiencies. A move to ‘real time’ information being made
available should enable Board Members to more-effectively identify items
warranting Board scrutiny.

6.

HR Implications

6.1

We would require a broad skillset from each individual Board Member to
ensure that the Board’s overall skills mix is appropriate to meet the challenges
it will face in the next few years.

7.

Residents at the Heart Implications

7.1

The role of residents, both on the Board and Scrutiny Panel is increased.
Residents would be given greater responsibility in the proposed Governance
Framework which includes expanded resident involvement in monitoring the
Company’s performance.

8.

Legal, Health & Safety and Equality & Diversity Implications

8.1

All of the above are given due consideration when determining any proposed
changes to our Governance arrangements. Where the position is unclear,
professional third party advice is sought.

9.

Risk Management

9.1

Risk Management is a key focus for the Board, and under the proposed
changes the level of Risk Management and assurance information received
by Board and F&A Committee will not be reduced. The Committee must be
comfortable that any recommendation to Board comes with appropriate levels
of assurance in its Risk Management Framework.

10.

Appendices

10.1 Appendix 1: Amended Memorandum & Articles of Association
Appendix 2: Copy of Special Resolution approved by Board for submission to
CBC for approval.
Appendix 3: Track-changed version of Amended Memorandum & Articles of
Association
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AGM Item 7 Appendix 1

Company No. 4843624

THE COMPANIES ACTS 1985, 1989 AND 2006
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL
Date of Incorporation: 24th July 2003
___________________________________________
MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES
OF ASSOCIATION
As amended by written special resolution passed on 9th October 2008,
on 7th August 2013 and on 2nd November 2017
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Company No. 4843624
THE COMPANIES ACTS 1985, 1989 AND 2006
___________________________________________
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL
___________________________________________

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

-of-

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
1.

NAME
The name of the company is Colchester Borough Homes Limited (“the
Organisation").

2.

REGISTERED OFFICE
The Organisation’s registered office is to be located in England.

3.

OBJECTS

The objects of the Organisation shall be predominately in the areas where the
Council owns or manages housing stock (and in any other areas as the Board
may decide from time to time) to:

(1)

provide, manage, maintain, improve, demolish or convert:
a.

the housing stock owned or managed by the Council;

b.

social housing owned by the Organisation; or

c. any housing not being within (a) or (b) above
from time to time together with any other amenities or facilities for the
benefit of residents of such housing stock either exclusively or
together with persons who are not residents of such housing stock;
T:\Business Services\Business Support\Admin\Board and Governance\Board\a. Meetings from Sept 06\2017\98. 02.11.17 and
AGM\X07a. Amended CBH Mem & Arts 6.10.17.docx
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(2)

provide amenities and services of any description for residents of housing
stock owned or managed by the Council or the Organisation from time to
time either exclusively or together with persons who are not residents of
such housing stock;

(3)

provide advice and assistance to all tenants, leaseholders, and licensees,
of the Council or the Organisation and applicants for housing and
applicants for housing advice;

(4)

carry out any activity which contributes to regeneration or development
(within the meaning of Section 126 of the Housing Grants Construction and
Regeneration Act 1996) in the area of the Council and in any other areas
as the Board may decide from time to time, including but not limited to:-

I.

securing that land and buildings are brought into effective use;

II.

contributing to or encouraging economic development;

III.

creating an attractive and safe environment;

IV.

preventing crime or reducing the fear of crime;

V.

providing or improving housing or social and recreational facilities for
the purpose of encouraging people to live or work in the said area or
for the purpose of benefiting people who live there;

VI.

providing employment and training;

VII.

providing or improving training, educational facilities or health services
for local people;

VIII.

assisting local people to make use of opportunities for education,
training or employment;

IX.

meeting the special needs of local people which arise because of
disability or because of their sex or the racial group to which they
belong.
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(5)

provide, construct, improve or manage housing for sale (including for sale
on shared equity or shared ownership or other similar basis) or to be kept
available for letting or hostels;

(6)

provide, manage, maintain or improve accommodation required from time
to time for the benefit of persons who require temporary accommodation;

(7)

assess applicants for housing assistance including the allocation of
dwellings on behalf of the Council;

(8)

assess applications by residents of housing stock owned or managed by
the Council to exercise the right to buy under Part V of the Housing Act
1985;

(9)

enabling or assisting any residents of the housing stock owned or managed
by either the Council or the Organisation to acquire, or to acquire and enter
into occupation of, houses;

(10) provide services of any description for the Council, registered social
landlords or other social housing providers in so far as they are connected
with or incidental to the Organisation’s housing objectives;
(11) carry out such other activities connected with or incidental to the
Organisation’s housing objectives as the Council shall approve; and
(12) carry out any other activity that can be carried out by a non-charitable
company registered under Chapter 3 of Part 2 of the Housing and
Regeneration Act 2008 (as amended or replaced from time to time).
4.

POWERS

Subject to Clause 5, the Organisation may do anything that a natural or corporate
person can lawfully do which is not expressly prohibited by the Memorandum
and in particular it has powers:
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Property

(1)

to construct, alter, improve, maintain, equip, furnish and/or demolish any
buildings, structures or property;

(2)

to purchase, lease, exchange, hire or otherwise acquire any real or
personal property rights or privileges (including shared or contingent
interests);

(3)

to sell, lease, licence, exchange, dispose of or otherwise deal with
property;

(4)

to provide accommodation for any other person or organisation on such
terms as the Board decides (including rent free or at nominal or noncommercial rents);

(5)

to promote tenant participation in housing and estate management and to
encourage tenant and community empowerment;

Staff and Volunteers

(6)

to employ staff or engage consultants and advisers on such terms as the
Board may approve and to provide pensions to staff, their relatives and
dependants;

(7)

to recruit or assist in recruiting and managing voluntary workers;

Fund Raising

(8)

to raise funds, to invite and receive contributions;

Trading

(9)

to trade in the course of carrying out its objects and to charge for services;
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Publicity

(10) to hold, conduct or promote meetings, conferences, lectures, exhibitions or
training courses and to disseminate information to publicise the work of the
Organisation and other similar organisations;

(11) to promote or carry out research and publish the results of it;
Contracts

(12) to co-operate with and enter into contracts with any person, including the
Council;
Bank or Building Society Accounts

(13) to draw, make, accept, endorse discount, execute and issue promissory
notes, bills, cheques and other instruments and to operate bank or building
society accounts in the name of the Organisation;
Borrowing and Loans

(14) subject to the prior written consent of the Council and to such consents as
may be required by law to borrow money, to issue loan stock or raise
money in such manner as the Organisation shall think fit and to secure the
repayment of any money borrowed raised or owing by such security as the
Organisation shall see fit (including by way of floating charge) upon the
whole or any part of the Organisation’s property or assets (whether present
or future) and also by giving similar security to secure and guarantee the
performance by the Organisation of any obligation or liability it may
undertake or which may become binding on it;

Insurance

(15) to insure the assets of the Organisation to such amount and on such terms
as the Board decides, to pay premiums out of income or capital and to use
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any insurance proceeds as the Board decides (without necessarily having
to restore the asset);

(16) to insure and indemnify its employees and voluntary workers from and
against all risks incurred in the proper performance of their duties;
(17) to take out insurance to protect the Organisation and those who use
premises owned by or let or hired to the Organisation;
(18) to take out indemnity insurance to cover the liability of the Board Members
and officers of the Organisation who are not Board Members but this
insurance may not extend to:

a. any claim arising from any act or omission which a Board Member or
officer knew was a breach of duty or breach of trust or which was
committed by a Board Member or officer in reckless disregard of
whether it was a breach of duty or breach of trust or not; or

b. the costs of an unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought
against a Board Member or officer in his capacity as a Board Member
or officer of the Organisation.

Investments

(19) to invest the money of the Organisation in any investments, shares,
securities or property (real or personal) of any nature (including
investments involving liability and those not producing income) and in any
location that the Board decides;

(20) to delegate to an investment manager power at their discretion to buy and
sell investments for the Organisation in accordance with the investments
policy laid down by the Board;
(21) to make such arrangements as the Board thinks fit for any investments of
the Organisation or income from those investments to be held by a
corporate body which is incorporated in England and Wales (or which has
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established a branch or a place of business in England and Wales) as the
Organisation’s nominee and to pay remuneration to that corporate body;
(22) subject to such consents as may be required by law and compliance with
all formal guidance issued by the Organisation’s regulators (if any) to
purchase or otherwise acquire or encourage or promote and in any way
support or aid the establishment and development of any subsidiary, or any
other body established for the purposes of carrying on any trade or
business either for the purpose of raising funds for the Organisation or for
the furtherance of the objects of the Organisation;
(23) to make donations, grants or loans to such persons and organisations and
on such terms as the Board shall think fit to further the objects of the
Organisation;
Other Organisations

(24) to establish, promote, assist or support (financially or otherwise) any trusts,
companies, industrial and provident societies, associations or institutions
which have purposes which include any one or more of its objects;

(25) to co-operate or join with any voluntary body or public or statutory authority
in any location whatsoever in furthering its objects or allied purposes, to
exchange information and advice and to undertake joint activities with
them;
(26) to provide services or assistance to such persons and organisations as
permitted by the objects of the Organisation and on such terms as the
Board shall think fit to further those objects;
(27) to amalgamate with any organisation which has objects similar to its
objects;
(28) to affiliate, register, subscribe to or join any relevant organisation;
(29) to act as agent or trustee for any organisation;
Reserves
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(30) to accumulate income in order to set aside funds for special purposes or
as reserves against future expenditure;
Formation expenses

(31) to pay the costs of forming the Organisation and of complying with all
relevant registration requirements;
General

(32) to do anything else within the law which promotes or helps to promote its
objects.

5.

The Organisation shall not, without the prior written consent of the Council,
have the power to:

(1)

2

6.

enter into any transaction which may affect:
a.

the Council’s affordable borrowing limits as determined from time
to time by the Council under section 3 of the Local Government
Act 2003;

b.

any borrowing limits set by the Secretary of State under section 4
of the Local Government Act 2003 either in relation to the
Council’s borrowing limits or the limits of local authorities in
general; or

c.

the Council’s compliance with the Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities published by CIPFA as amended or
reissued from time to time; or

invest or make any arrangements to invest sums other than in a building society
or bank.

APPLICATION OF INCOME AND PROPERTY

The income and property of the Organisation shall be applied solely towards the
promotion of its objects as set forth in the Memorandum of Association and no
portion thereof shall be paid or transferred, directly or indirectly, save as provided
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below by way of dividend, bonus or otherwise howsoever by way of profit, to the
Council and no Board Member shall be appointed to any office of the
Organisation paid by salary or fees or receive any remuneration or other benefit
or money or money's worth from the Organisation PROVIDED THAT nothing
herein shall prevent any payment in good faith by the Organisation:-

(1)

Of reasonable and proper remuneration (including pensions, contributory
pension payments, payment of premiums to pension policies and terminal
grants and gratuities) to any officer or employee of the Organisation in
return for any services rendered to the Organisation. For the avoidance of
doubt, Senior Executives may serve as Board Members pursuant to Article
13.5, but no other Board Members may receive any benefit under this
Clause 6 (1);

(2)

Of fees, remuneration or other benefit in money or money's worth to a
company of which a Board Member may be a member holding not more
than 2% of the share capital of the company;

(3)

To any Board Member of reasonable out-of pocket expenses and such
other sums including payment for acting as a Board Member, Chair or Vice
Chair as may be determined by the Board PROVIDED THAT

(a) no sum shall be paid to a Board Member in excess of that which would
be permitted to be paid to a Board Member pursuant to any guidance
issued from time to time by Communities and Local Government or
such other of Her Majesty’s Government Departments relating to the
payment

of

Board

Members

of

Arm’s-Length

Management

Organisations;

(b) no sum shall be paid to a Board Member in excess of any maximum
amount set by the Council from time to time; and
(c) no sum shall be paid to a Board Member who is an elected member of
the Council in excess of that permitted by the Order;
(4)

Of sums due in respect of indemnity insurance for Board Members under
Clause 4(17);
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(5)

Of reasonable and proper remuneration to the Council or employees
thereof (not being Board Members) in return for any services rendered to
the Organisation;

(6)

Of reasonable and proper rent for premises demised or let by the Council;

(7)

Of reasonable and proper interest on money lent by the Council

PROVIDED FURTHER THAT nothing shall prevent the Organisation from
managing a property in accordance with its objects (including the full range of
activities it may undertake) notwithstanding the fact that the tenant, lessee or
licensee (or prospective tenant, lessee or licensee) of such property may be a
Board Member SUBJECT TO the proviso that any Board Member who is a
beneficiary of the Organisation shall not be entitled to speak in any debate or
cast his/her vote in respect of any matter relating solely to the property of which
he is lessee, licensee or tenant and shall absent himself/herself from such
proceedings but such Board Member shall be entitled to speak and vote in
respect of matters which relate not only to such property but also to other
properties managed by the Organisation.
7.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Organisation shall at all times take into consideration the principles of
equality of opportunity irrespective of age, gender, race, nationality, ethnic origin,
religion, sexual orientation or disability.

8.

LIMITED LIABILITY

The liability of the Member is limited.
9.

MEMBERS GUARANTEE

The Member undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Organisation, in the
event of the same being wound up while he is a member of the Organisation, or
within one year after he ceases to be a member of the Organisation, for payment
of the debts and liabilities of the Organisation contracted before he ceases to be
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a member of the Organisation, and of the costs, charges and expenses of
winding up, and for the adjustment of the rights of the contributories among
themselves, such amount as may be required not exceeding one pound.
10.

WINDING UP

If, upon the winding up or dissolution of the Organisation, there remains, after
the satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities any property whatsoever, the same
shall be paid or transferred to the Housing Revenue Account (as defined in the
1989 Act) of the Council.

11.

DEFINITIONS

(a)

“Order” shall mean the Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995 as
amended or re-enacted from time to time;

(b)

“the 1989 Act” shall mean the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 as
amended or re-enacted from time to time;

(c)

“Prudential Code” means the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance
in Local Authorities.

(d)

terms defined in the Articles of Association of the Organisation shall have
the same meaning in this Memorandum of Association.
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I am the subscriber to the Memorandum of Association and wish to be joined
into a company in pursuance of the Memorandum.

Name and Address of Subscriber Authorised Representative

Witnessed

Colchester Borough Council
Town Hall
Colchester
CO1 1GL

Dated
Witnessed by
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Company No. 4843624

THE COMPANIES ACTS 1985, 1989 AND 2006

___________________________________________

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL
___________________________________________

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

-of-

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.

In the Articles unless the context otherwise requires:

"the Act"

Means the Companies Act 2006 including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force

"the Articles"

Means these Articles of Association as originally
adopted or as altered from time to time.

"Board"

Means

the

Board

of

directors

of

the

Organisation from time to time.

"Board Members"

Means the directors for the time being of the
Organisation.
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“Chair Appointment Panel”

Means a panel set up by the Board for the
purpose of recruiting the Chair pursuant to
Article 14.

"Chairman"

Means the Chairman of the Organisation
appointed pursuant to Article 14 or in his
absence any vice or deputy chairman appointed
pursuant to Article 32.

"clear days"

In relation to the period of a notice means that
period excluding the day when the notice is
given or deemed to be given and the day for
which it is given or on which it is to take effect.

"Council"

Means Colchester Borough Council or any
successor body thereto who shall be the sole
member of the Organisation.

"Council Board Member"

Means a Board Member appointed by the
Council pursuant to Article 15.

"executed"

Means in relation to any contract, agreement or
other document consent thereto and includes
any mode of execution.

"Independent Board Member"

Means a Board Member appointed pursuant to
Article 17.

“Leaseholder”

Means an individual who is not a secure tenant
and both holds a lease and occupies the
residential property which is the subject of that
lease where the freehold belongs to the Council.

"Local Authority Person"

Means any person:
i.

who is a member of the Council; or
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ii.

who is an officer of the Council (which for
these purposes shall not include employees
without a supervisory or managerial role
apart from employees responsible for
monitoring the activities of or providing
advice to the Organisation or who perform
duties in relation to the Council’s housing
functions).

"Office"

Means the registered office of the Organisation.

“the Organisation”

Means Colchester Borough Homes Limited.

“the seal”

Means the common seal of the Organisation

"Secretary"

Means the secretary of the Organisation or any
other person appointed to perform the duties of
the secretary of the Organisation, including a
joint, assistant or deputy secretary

“Senior Executives”

Means the chief executive officer and the chief
financial officer of the Organisation and any
other members of the Directors Management
Team as agreed by the Board in consultation
with the Council

"Tenant"

Means an individual who occupies a residential
property belonging to the Council under a
secure tenancy agreement or a lease of
residential property of the Council

"Tenant Board Member"

Means a Board Member appointed pursuant to
Article 16.

“Tenants Representative Body” Means such body as the Board may resolve to
be the representative of the tenants of the
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Council whose dwellings are managed by the
Organisation.

"the United Kingdom"

2.

(1)

Means Great Britain and Northern Ireland.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions

contained in these regulations bear the same meaning as in the Act but
excluding any statutory modification thereof not in force when these
regulations become binding on the Organisation.
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ADMISSION OF MEMBERS

3.

No person other than the Council shall be admitted to membership of the
Organisation.

4.

The Council shall nominate a person to act as its representative in the manner
provided in Section 323 of the Companies Act 2006. Such representative shall
have the right on behalf of the Council to attend meetings of the Organisation
and vote thereat, and generally exercise all rights of membership on behalf of
the Council. The Council may from time to time revoke the nomination of such
representative, and nominate another representative in his place. All such
nominations and revocations shall be in writing.

5.

The rights of the Council shall be personal and shall not be transferable.

GENERAL MEETINGS AND RESOLUTIONS

6.

All general meetings other than annual general meetings shall be called
extraordinary general meetings.

7.

The Board Members may call general meetings and, on the requisition of the
Council pursuant to the provisions of the Act, shall forthwith proceed to convene
an extraordinary general meeting for a date not later than eight weeks after
receipt of the requisition. If there are not within the United Kingdom sufficient
Board Members to call a general meeting, any Board Member or the Council may
call a general meeting.

8.

(1)

An annual general meeting or any extraordinary general meeting not
called on the requisition of the Council pursuant to Article 7 shall be called
by at least fourteen clear days’ notice or by shorter notice if it is so agreed
by the Council in writing.

(2)

The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and, in the case
of an annual general meeting, shall specify the meeting as such.

(3)

The notice shall be given to the Council and to the Board Members and
auditors.
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(4)

The notice shall be posted in such place as the Board decides in order to
bring it to the attention of the Tenants.

9.

The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of
notice of a meeting by, any person entitled to receive notice shall not invalidate
the proceedings at that meeting.

10.

(1)

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum
is present. The presence of a duly authorised representative of the Council
shall be a quorum.

(2)

Tenants and Board Members may attend any annual general meeting and
may speak but may not vote.

11.

If the Council makes a decision which would be required to be taken in a general
meeting by means of a written resolution, that decision shall be valid and
effectual as if agreed by the Organisation in general meeting. Any decision taken
by the Council pursuant to this Article 11 shall be recorded in writing and
delivered by the Council to every Board Member and to the Organisation for entry
in the Organisation’s minute book.

12.

An entry stating that a resolution has been carried or lost in the approved minutes
of any meeting shall be conclusive evidence of the fact.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEMBERS

13.

(1)

The number of Board Members shall be a minimum of nine. .

(2)

A minimum of three Board Members shall be Council Board Members.

(3)

A minimum of three Board Members shall be Tenant Board Members.

(4)

A minimum of three Board Members shall be Independent Board
Members.
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(5)

In addition to the above, the Board may appoint the Senior Executives as
Board Members subject to the written agreement of the Council, for such
period as the Board may determine.

(7)

No more than one half of the Board Members shall be Tenants. Not more
than one Tenant Board Member shall be a Leaseholder.

(8)

No more than one half of the Board Members shall be Local Authority
Persons.

(9)

In the event that the number of Board Members shall be less than the
numbers specified in this Article 13 the remaining Board Members shall
use reasonable endeavours to appoint further Board Members but, for
the avoidance of doubt, may act notwithstanding there are vacancies in
their number.

(10)

Notwithstanding any other provisions in these Articles the Council shall
have power at any time by notice in writing to the Secretary to remove
any Board Member.

APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBER AS CHAIR

14.

(1)

The Board may invite the Chair Appointment Panel to appoint one person
as either a Tenant Board Member or an Independent Board Member to
act as Chair of the Organisation. The Chair shall be recruited following
an open selection process to be agreed with the Council, but in any event
the chief officer of the Council and the portfolio holder with responsibility
for housing may serve on the Chair Appointment Panel.

(2)

The Board Member appointed as Chair shall hold office for three years
but can be reappointed by the Chair Appointment Panel for one further
period of three years.
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APPOINTMENT OF COUNCIL BOARD MEMBERS BY THE COUNCIL

15.

(1)

Subject to Articles 13 and 19, the Council shall from time to time appoint
no fewer than three persons as Council Board Members and shall have
the power to remove from office any such Board Member.

(2)

Appointment or removal pursuant to Article 15(1) shall be effected by an
instrument in writing signed by the Council and shall take effect upon
lodgement at the registered office of the Organisation or such date later
than such lodgement as may be specified in the instrument.

RETIREMENT AND SELECTION OF TENANT BOARD MEMBERS

16.

(1)

Subject to Articles 13 and 19, there are to be a minimum of three Tenant
Board Members.

(2)

Subject to Articles 16.6 and 16.7, Tenant Board Members shall hold office
for three years and at each annual general meeting of the Organisation
the Tenant Board Members shall retire from office in the following
rotation:

(a)

at the first annual general meeting following the adoption of these
Articles, one third of the Tenant Board Members shall retire;

(b) at the second annual general meeting following the adoption of
these Articles, one third of the Tenant Board Members shall retire;
and
(c) at the third annual general meeting following the adoption of these
Articles, the remaining Tenant Board Members shall retire

and so forth such that the Tenant Board Members shall subsequently
retire in a rotation which mirrors that in sub-paragraphs (a) to (c). The
decision as to which of the Tenant Board Members are to serve for
which of the periods set out in Article 16(2)(a) to (c) is to be determined
by the length of time they have served as Board Members and, for
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Tenant Board Members who have served for the same length of time,
by lot.

(3)

The Tenant Board Members to retire at any such subsequent annual
general meeting shall be those who have been longest in office since they
last became Tenant Board Members, but as between persons who
became Board Members on the same day those to retire shall be chosen
by agreement between the Tenant Board Members or, failing such
agreement, by lot PROVIDED THAT where a Tenant Board Member is
appointed as a consequence of the death or retirement (other than by
operation of this sub-paragraph) of another Tenant Board Member (“the
Predecessor”) under Articles 18(4) to 18(5) inclusive, the period of time
for which the Tenant Board Member shall have held office shall, for the
purposes only of this Article 16(3), be deemed to include the period since
the appointment of the Predecessor.

(4)

Prior to every annual general meeting where Tenant Board Members are
due to retire, an open selection process shall be conducted for the
number of Tenants to be appointed thereat. Only Tenants shall be eligible
to be appointed as Tenant Board Members. A Tenant Board Member
retiring in accordance with Article 16(2) may put themselves forward for
selection for a second term of office of three years and is eligible to be
re-appointed as a Tenant Board Member. A Tenant Board Member who
has served two continuous three year terms of office may only be
selected for re-appointment if the Board so resolve. Otherwise the mode
of the selection process shall be as the Board may from time to time agree
subject at all times to compliance with Article 13.

(5)

The Secretary shall announce the results of the selection process
referred to in Article 16(4) at each relevant annual general meeting and
the Tenants so selected shall be duly appointed as Tenant Board
Members.

(6)

Where the Chair is a Tenant Board Member, then the provisions of this
Article in relation to retirement by rotation and reappointment shall apply
to the remaining Tenant Board Members only, and in particular Article
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16(2) shall be construed such that only the remaining Tenant Board
Members are taken into account when considering the number of Tenant
Board Members to retire pursuant to that Article.

(7)

Where:
(a) there are similar numbers of Tenant Board Members, Council Board
Members and Independent Board Members; and
(b) a new Chair is appointed under Article 14 who is a Tenant;
then one of the current Tenant Board Members shall be deemed to cease
to hold office. In the absence of agreement between the Tenant Board
Members as to that person, lots shall be drawn.

RETIREMENT AND APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBERS

17.

(1)

Subject to Articles 17.3, 17.4 and 17.5, the Board Members who are
Independent Board Members shall cease to hold office when they have
completed a three year term.

(2)

The Board may agree a selection process and appoint such person as it
may choose to fill any vacancy for an Independent Board Member, which
process shall involve the chief officer of the Council and/or the portfolio
holder with responsibility for housing.

Independent Board Members

appointed by the Board shall hold office for a period of three years but
may be re-appointed subject to Article 17(3).

(3)

If, on the expiry of the first or second three year term of office of an
Independent Board Member the retiring Board Member is willing to act
then the Board may reappoint the Board Member concerned.

(4)

Where the Chair is an Independent Board Member, then the provisions
of this Article in relation to retirement and reappointment shall apply to
the remaining Independent Board Members only.

(5)

Where:
(a) there are similar numbers of Independent Board Members, Council
Board Members and Tenant Board Members; and
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(b) a new Chair is appointed under Article 14 who is to be an Independent
Board Member;
then one of the current Independent Board Members shall be deemed to
cease to hold office. In the absence of agreement between the
Independent Board Members as to that person, lots shall be drawn.

CASUAL VACANCIES

18.

Subject to Articles 13, 14 and 19, vacancies on the Board may only be filled
according to the following:-

(1)

For Council Board Members, by the Council. If the Council shall have
failed within three months of a written request by the Board to make the
appropriate appointments to the Board of a Council Board Member, the
Board may fill the vacancies solely until the next annual general meeting;

(2)

For Independent Board Members and Senior Executives, by the Board
following such process as the Board may from time to time approve;

(3)

If the Board fails to make an appointment within six months of a vacancy
for an Independent Board Member, the Council may appoint any person
who is willing to act as an Independent Board Member to the vacancy
solely until the next annual general meeting;

(4)

For Tenant Board Members, where there remains more than one year
until retirement, by the Board following such selection process as the
Board shall reasonably determine.

DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL OF BOARD MEMBERS

19.

A person shall be ineligible for appointment to the Board and if already appointed
shall immediately cease to be a Board Member if the relevant individual:-

(1)

ceases to be a Board Member by virtue of any provision of the Act or
becomes prohibited by law from being a company director; or
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(2)

is or becomes a person disqualified from elected membership of a local
authority; or

(3)

becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his
creditors generally; or

(4)

is receiving medical treatment and a registered medical practitioner who
is treating that person gives a written opinion to the company stating that
that person has become physically or mentally incapable of acting as a
director and may remain so for more than three months; or

(5)

resigns his office by notice to the Organisation; or

(6)

is removed from office by a resolution of (or written notice signed by) at
least three quarters of all the other Board Members from time to time
provided that the Board Member concerned has first been given an
opportunity to state why he should not be removed as a Board Member;
or

(7)

is found by resolution of the Board (such resolution to be passed with a
two thirds majority) following an appropriate investigation process to have
breached any agreed code of conduct for Board Members or to have
otherwise conducted themselves in a manner which is materially
detrimental to the interests of the Organisation, provided that the Board
Member concerned has first been given an opportunity to state why he
should not be so removed;

(8)

shall for more than six consecutive months have been absent without
permission of the Board from meetings of the Board held during that
period and the Board resolves that his office be vacated; or

(9)

in any period of 12 months, he shall have been absent (without the
permission of the Board Members) from at least 60% of the meetings of
Board Members held during that period and the Board Members resolve
that his office be vacated; or

(10)

in the case of a Tenant Board Member he ceases to be a Tenant
PROVIDED THAT this Article 19(9) shall not apply in respect of a Tenant
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Board Member temporarily ceasing to be a Tenant as a result of the
demolition of or works carried out to that Tenant Board Member’s home;
or
(11)

is a Tenant Board Member and is, (in the reasonable opinion of at least
three quarters of all the other Board Members) in serious breach of their
obligations as a Tenant (where “serious breach” means a breach that has
led to the service of a notice of intention to seek possession); or

(12)

is a Council Board Member and is or becomes a Tenant leading to a
breach of the limit in Article 13(5); or

(13)

is a Tenant Board Member and is or becomes a Local Authority Person
leading to a breach of the limit in Article 13(6); or

(14)

is a Tenant Board Member and is or becomes a Leaseholder leading to
a breach of the limit in Article 13(5); or

(15)

is a Tenant Board Member and becomes an Independent Board Member
leading to a breach of the limit in Article 13(4); or

(16)

is an Independent Board Member and is or becomes a Tenant or a Local
Authority Person; or

(17)

is removed by resolution of the Council pursuant to Article 13(10) ; or

(18)

is a Leaseholder and is or becomes an Independent Board Member
leading to a breach of the limit in Article 13(4) ; or

(19)

is a Tenant Board Member and is appointed to serve on the executive
committee of the Tenants Representative Body; or

(20)

has served as a Board Member for a period of 9 years without a break of
more than 12 months, unless the Board resolves that the person
concerned should not cease to hold office; or

(21)

being the Chair, has served as Chair for a period of six years; or

(22)

being a Senior Executive, is removed from office by resolution of the
Board; or
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(23)

being a Senior Executive when appointed as a Board Member, ceases to
be employed by the Organisation in that capacity;

(24)

is deemed to cease to hold office under Articles 15.4, 16.7 or 17.5.

Where a person is under investigation for a potential serious breach of their
obligations either as a Tenant or Board Member, the Chair or Vice Chair may
suspend a member of the Board from meetings whilst the investigation is taking
place. The suspension to be for not more than 8 weeks, and must be reviewed
at the next available Board meeting where any further suspension must be
approved by a simple majority of the Board.
POWERS OF THE BOARD

20.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, directions of the Council in general meeting
and the Memorandum and the Articles, the business of the Organisation shall be
managed by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the Organisation,
save that the Board may only appoint a chief executive with the consent of the
Council and following such process as may be agreed between the Council and
the Organisation, including the chief officer of the Council and/or the portfolio
holder with responsibility for housing taking part on any appointment panel. No
alteration of the Memorandum or Articles or directions of the Council shall
invalidate any prior act of the Board which would have been valid if that alteration
had not been made. The powers given by this Article shall not be limited by any
special power given to the Board by the Articles and a meeting of the Board at
which a quorum is present may exercise all powers exercisable by the Board.

21.

The Board may, by power of attorney or otherwise, appoint any person to be the
agent of the Organisation for such purposes and on such conditions as they
determine, including authority for the agent to delegate all or any of his powers.
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BORROWING POWERS

22.

Subject to Clauses 4(14) and 5 of the Memorandum the Board may exercise all
the powers of the Organisation to borrow money without limit as to amount and
upon such terms and in such manner as they think fit, and to grant any mortgage,
charge or other security over its undertaking and property, or any part thereof,
and to issue any debenture, whether outright or as security for any debt, liability
or obligation of the Organisation or of any third party.

DELEGATION OF BOARD MEMBERS' POWERS

23.

(1)

The Board may delegate any of their powers to any committee consisting
of such persons the Board considers fit to exercise such powers. They
may also delegate to the Chairman/or any vice or deputy Chairman or to
any executive officer such of their powers as they consider desirable to
be exercised by him.

(2)

Any such delegation may be made subject to any conditions the Board
may impose, and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of their own
powers and may be revoked or altered. Subject to any such conditions
and this Article, the proceedings of a committee with two or more
members shall be governed by the Articles regulating the proceedings of
the Board so far as they are capable of applying.

ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBERS

24.

No Board Member shall be entitled to appoint any person as an alternate Board
Member.

BOARD MEMBERS' EXPENSES

25.

The Board Members may be paid all travelling, hotel, and other expenses
reasonably and properly incurred by them in connection with their attendance at
meetings of the Board or committees of the Board or general meetings or
otherwise in connection with the discharge of their duties and such other sums
as may be determined by the Board PROVIDED THAT
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(a)

no sum shall be paid to a Board Member in excess of that which would be
permitted to be paid to a Board Member pursuant to any guidance issued
from time to time by Communities and Local Government or such other of
Her Majesty’s Government Departments relating to the payment of Board
Members of Arm’s-Length Management Organisations;

(b)

no sum shall be paid to a Senior Executive who is a Board Member which
he or she is also entitled to claim in their capacity as an employee of the
Organisation;

(c)

no sum shall be paid to a Board Member in excess of any maximum
amount set by the Council from time to time; and

(d)

no sum shall be paid to a Board Member who is an elected member of the
Council in excess of that permitted by the Order.

BOARD MEMBERS' APPOINTMENTS AND INTERESTS

26.

A Board Member may not have any financial interest personally or as a member
of a firm or as a director or senior employee (being an employee with managerial
status) in any contract or other transaction of the Organisation unless it is
permitted by these Articles and is not prohibited by Clause 5 of the
Memorandum.

27.

Each Board Member shall ensure that the Secretary has at all times an up to
date list of:-

(1)

all bodies trading in which he or she has an interest as:

(a)

a director or senior employee,

(b)

a member or partner of a firm,

(c)

the owner or controller of more than 2% of the issued share capital
in a company,
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(2)

all interests as an official or elected member of any statutory body;

(3)

all interests as the occupier of any property owned or managed by the
Organisation;

(4)

any other significant or material interest.

PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD MEETINGS

28.

(1)

Subject to any regulations established from time to time by the

Organisation in general meeting and compliance with Section 10(1) of the Local
Authorities (Companies Order) 1995 the Board may regulate their proceedings
as they think fit and the quorum for the transaction of the business of the Board
at the time when the meeting proceeds to business shall be four comprising no
fewer than one Tenant Board Member, one Independent Board Member, one
Council Board Member and one other Board Member PROVIDED THAT if either
the number of Board Members in one or more category of Board Member falls
below one or all the Board Members in one or more category are prevented from
counting towards the quorum by Article 30 then the quorum requirement shall be
reduced to none in respect of such category or categories.

(2)

33 1/3 percent of the total number of Board Members (or such whole
number of Board Members nearest to 33 1/3 percent) may call a meeting
of the Board. It shall not be necessary to give notice of a meeting to a Board
Member who is absent from the United Kingdom.

(3)

If a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for a
Board Meeting the Board Meeting shall, if requested by a majority of those
Board Members present, be adjourned to the same day in the next week
at the same time and place or to such other day and at such other time and
place as the Board Members present may determine.

(4)

If at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour from
the time appointed for the meeting then notwithstanding Article 28(1) the
Board Members present shall constitute a quorum.
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29.

(1)

Questions arising at a Board Meeting shall be decided by a majority of
votes and each Board Member present in person shall be entitled to one
vote.

(2)

If there is an equality of votes the Chairman is entitled to a second or
casting vote.

30.

(1)

Any Board Member having an interest in any arrangement between the
Organisation and another person or body shall disclose that interest to the
meeting before the matter is discussed by the Board or committee of the
Board. Unless the interest is of the type specified in Articles 30(2) or 30(3)
the Board Member concerned shall not remain present during the
discussion of that item unless requested to do so by the remaining
members of the Board or committee of the Board. Unless permitted by
Articles 30(2) or 30(3) the Board Member concerned may not vote on the
matter in question, but no decision of the Board or any committee of the
Board shall be invalidated by the subsequent discovery of an interest which
should have been declared.

(2)

Provided the interest has been properly disclosed pursuant to Article 30(1)
a Board Member may remain present during the discussion and may vote
on the matter under discussion where the interest arises because:

(a)

the Board Member is a Tenant so long as the matter in question
affects all or a substantial group of Tenants; or

(b)

the Board Member is a director or other officer of a company or
body which is a parent, subsidiary or associate of the Organisation;
or

(c)

the Board Member is an official or elected member of any statutory
body.

(3)

A Board Member shall not be treated as having an interest:

(a)

of which the Board Member has no knowledge and of which it is
unreasonable to expect him to have knowledge;
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(b)

in the establishment of a policy in respect of Board Member
expenses payable pursuant to Article 25.

31.

If a question arises at a meeting of the Board or of a committee of the Board as
to the right of a Board Member to vote, the question may, before the conclusion
of the meeting, be referred to the chairman of the meeting and his ruling in
relation to any Board Member other than himself shall be final and conclusive.

32.

(1)

Unless he is unwilling to do so, the Chair appointed under Article 14 shall preside
at every meeting of the Board at which he is present. But if there is no
Board Member holding that office, or if the Board Member holding it is
unwilling to preside or is not present within five minutes after the time
appointed for the meeting, the Board Members present may appoint one
of their number to be chairman of the meeting.

(2)

The Board may appoint one or two vice or deputy chairmen to act in the
absence of the Chairman on such terms as the Board shall think fit.

33.

All acts done by a meeting of the Board, or of a committee of the Board or by a
person acting as a Board Member shall, notwithstanding that it be afterwards
discovered that there was a defect in the appointment of any Board Member or
that any of them were disqualified from holding office, or had vacated office, or
were not entitled to vote, be as valid as if every such person had been duly
appointed and was qualified and had continued to be a Board Member and had
been entitled to vote.

WRITTEN RESOLUTION

34.

A resolution in writing signed by:

(1)

three quarters of all the Board Members entitled to receive notice of a
meeting of the Board or of a committee of the Board; and
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(2)

the Chairman of the Organisation or of the relevant committee; and which
satisfies the quorum requirements of Article 28(1) shall be as valid and
effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or (as the case
may be) a committee of the Board duly convened and held and may consist
of several documents in the like form each signed by one or more Board
Members.

OBSERVERS

35.

The Board may allow individuals who are not Board members to attend Board
Meetings as observers on whatever basis they decide. Observers may not vote
but may take part in discussions with the prior consent of the chairman of the
meeting. The Board may exclude observers from any part of a Board Meeting
where the Board considers the business is private and must exclude an observer
when considering a possible personal benefit to him or where the Organisation
has an obligation to treat information confidentially.

SECRETARY

36.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, a Secretary and a deputy or alternate
Secretary may be appointed by the Board for such term, at such remuneration
and upon such conditions as they may think fit and any Secretary so appointed
may be removed by them.

MINUTES

37.

The Board shall cause minutes to be made in books kept for the purpose:-

(1)

of all appointments of officers made by the Board Members; and

(2)

of all proceedings at meetings of the Organisation and of the Board, and
of committees of the Board and of the Council in its capacity as the sole
member of the Organisation, including the names of the Board Members
present at each such meeting.
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RECORDS ACCOUNTS AND RETURNS

38.

The Organisation shall comply with the provisions of Part V of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989, the Local Authorities (Companies) Order
1995 and Part VII of the Act in respect of:-

(1)

the keeping and auditing of accounting records;

(2)

the provision of accounts and annual reports of the Board Members; and

(3)

in making an annual return.

THE SEAL

39.

(1)

If the Organisation has a seal it shall only be used with the specific or
general authority of the Board or of a committee of the Board. The Board
may determine who shall sign any instrument to which the seal is affixed
and unless otherwise so determined it shall be signed by a Board Member
and by the Secretary or a second Board Member.

(2)

The Organisation may exercise the powers conferred by Section 39 of the
Act with regard to having an official seal for use abroad, and such powers
shall be vested in the Board Members.

NOTICES

40.

Any notice to be given to or by any person pursuant to the Articles shall be in
writing except that a notice calling a meeting of the Board or of a committee of
the Board need not be in writing.

41.

The Organisation may give any notice to the Council either personally or by
sending it by post in a prepaid envelope addressed to the Council at their
registered address or by leaving it at that address.

42.

The Council present by duly authorised representative at any meeting of the
Organisation shall be deemed to have received notice of the meeting and, where
requisite, of the purposes for which it was called.

T:\Business Services\Business Support\Admin\Board and Governance\Board\a. Meetings from Sept 06\2017\98. 02.11.17 and
AGM\X07a. Amended CBH Mem & Arts 6.10.17.docx

Page 33 of 36

80

AGM Item 7 Appendix 1

43.

Proof that an envelope containing a notice was properly addressed, prepaid and
posted shall be conclusive evidence that the notice was given. A notice shall be
deemed to be given at the expiration of 48 hours after the envelope containing it
was posted.

INDEMNITY

44.

(1)

Every Board Member or other officer of the Organisation shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Organisation against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto, including any liability
incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in
connection with any application under Section 727 of the Act in which relief
is granted to him and no Board Member or other officer shall be liable for
any loss, damage or misfortune which may happen to or be incurred by the
Organisation in the execution of the duties of his office or in relation thereto
PROVIDED THAT this Article shall only have effect in so far as its
provisions are not avoided by Section 232 of the Companies Act 2006.

(2)

The Board shall have power to purchase and maintain for any Board
Member or officer of the Organisation insurance against any such liability
as is referred to in Section 232 of the Companies Act 2006.
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Names & Addresses Authorised Representative Witnessed
Of Subscriber
Colchester Borough Council
Town Hall
Colchester
CO1 1GL

Dated
Witnessed by
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Company No 04843624

THE COMPANIES ACT 2006

PRIVATE COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL

WRITTEN RESOLUTIONS
of
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED (the "Company")
CIRCULATION DATE

27 October 2017

Pursuant to Chapter 2 of Part 13 of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors of the Company propose that the
following resolution is passed as a written resolution of the Company, having effect as, a special resolution
(the "Resolution").
SPECIAL RESOLUTION
1.

THAT the Company adopt the Memorandum and Articles of Association in the form annexed to this
Resolution in substitution for and to the exclusion of the existing memorandum of association and all
existing articles of association.

AGREEMENT
Please read the notes at the end of this document before signifying your agreement to the Resolution.
The undersigned, being the sole person entitled to vote on the above Resolution on the Circulation Date,
hereby irrevocably agrees/disagrees to the Resolution:-

.............................................................

........................................................

For and on behalf of Colchester Borough Council

Date

88085751.2\GS24
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NOTES
1.

Please indicate your agreement/disagreement by signing and dating this document where indicated
above and returning it to the Company using one of the following methods
1.1.1

By Hand: delivering the signed copy to Colchester Borough Homes Limited, Rowan House,
Sheepen Road, marked for the attention of Owen Howell;

1.1.2

Post: returning the signed copy by post to Colchester Borough Homes Limited, Rowan
House, Sheepen Road, marked for the attention of Owen Howell;

1.1.3

E-mail: by attaching a scanned copy of the signed document to an e-mail and sending it
toowen.howell@cbhomes.org.uk. Please enter "Written Resolution" in the e-mail subject
box

2.

If you have indicated your agreement to the Resolution, you may not revoke your agreement.

3.

Unless, by 28 days from the Circulation Date stated above, sufficient agreement has been received
for the Resolution to pass, it will lapse. If you agree to the Resolution, please ensure that your
agreement reaches us before or during this date.

4.

If you are signing this document on behalf of a person under a power of attorney or other authority
please send a copy of the relevant power of attorney or authority when returning this document.

88085751.2\GS24
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ANNEX 1
NEW ARTICLES

88085751.2\GS24
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Company No. 4843624

THE COMPANIES ACTS 1985, 1989 AND 2006
COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL
Date of Incorporation: 24th July 2003
___________________________________________
MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES
OF ASSOCIATION
As amended by written special resolution passed on 9th October 2008,
and on 7th August 2013 and on [date]
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Company No. 4843624
THE COMPANIES ACTS 1985, 1989 AND 2006
___________________________________________
COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL
___________________________________________

MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

-of-

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED
1.

NAME
The name of the company is Colchester Borough Homes Limited (“the
Organisation").

2.

REGISTERED OFFICE
The Organisation’s registered office is to be located in England.

3.

OBJECTS

The objects of the Organisation shall be predominately in the areas where the
Council owns or manages housing stock (and in any other areas as the Board
may decide from time to time) to:

(1)

provide, manage, maintain, improve, demolish or convert:
a.

the housing stock owned or managed by the Council;

b.

social housing owned by the Organisation; or

c. any housing not being within (a) or (b) above
from time to time together with any other amenities or facilities for
the benefit of residents of such housing stock either exclusively or
together with persons who are not residents of such housing stock;
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(2)

provide amenities and services of any description for residents of housing
stock owned or managed by the Council or the Organisation from time to
time either exclusively or together with persons who are not residents of
such housing stock;

(3)

provide advice and assistance to all tenants, leaseholders, and licensees,
of the Council or the Organisation and applicants for housing and
applicants for housing advice;

(4)

carry out any activity which contributes to regeneration or development
(within the meaning of Section 126 of the Housing Grants Construction
and Regeneration Act 1996) in the area of the Council and in any other
areas as the Board may decide from time to time, including but not limited
to:-

I.

securing that land and buildings are brought into effective use;

II.

contributing to or encouraging economic development;

III.

creating an attractive and safe environment;

IV.

preventing crime or reducing the fear of crime;

V.

providing or improving housing or social and recreational facilities for
the purpose of encouraging people to live or work in the said area or
for the purpose of benefiting people who live there;

VI.

providing employment and training;

VII.

providing or improving training, educational facilities or health
services for local people;

VIII.

assisting local people to make use of opportunities for education,
training or employment;

IX.

meeting the special needs of local people which arise because of
disability or because of their sex or the racial group to which they
belong.
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(5)

provide, construct, improve or manage housing for sale (including for sale
on shared equity or shared ownership or other similar basis) or to be kept
available for letting or hostels;

(6)

provide, manage, maintain or improve accommodation required from time
to time for the benefit of persons who require temporary accommodation;

(7)

assess applicants for housing assistance including the allocation of
dwellings on behalf of the Council;

(8)

assess applications by residents of housing stock owned or managed by
the Council to exercise the right to buy under Part V of the Housing Act
1985;

(9)

enabling or assisting any residents of the housing stock owned or
managed by either the Council or the Organisation to acquire, or to
acquire and enter into occupation of, houses;

(10) provide services of any description for the Council, registered social
landlords or other social housing providers in so far as they are
connected with or incidental to the Organisation’s housing objectives;
(11) carry out such other activities connected with or incidental to the
Organisation’s housing objectives as the Council shall approve; and
(12) carry out any other activity that can be carried out by a non-charitable
company registered under Chapter 3 of Part 2 of the Housing and
Regeneration Act 2008 (as amended or replaced from time to time).

4.

POWERS

Subject to Clause 5, the Organisation may do anything that a natural or
corporate person can lawfully do which is not expressly prohibited by the
Memorandum and in particular it has powers:
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Property

(1)

to construct, alter, improve, maintain, equip, furnish and/or demolish any
buildings, structures or property;

(2)

to purchase, lease, exchange, hire or otherwise acquire any real or
personal property rights or privileges (including shared or contingent
interests);

(3)

to sell, lease, licence, exchange, dispose of or otherwise deal with
property;

(4)

to provide accommodation for any other person or organisation on such
terms as the Board decides (including rent free or at nominal or noncommercial rents);

(5)

to promote tenant participation in housing and estate management and to
encourage tenant and community empowerment;

Staff and Volunteers

(6)

to employ staff or engage consultants and advisers on such terms as the
Board may approve and to provide pensions to staff, their relatives and
dependants;

(7)

to recruit or assist in recruiting and managing voluntary workers;

Fund Raising

(8)

to raise funds, to invite and receive contributions;

Trading

(9)

to trade in the course of carrying out its objects and to charge for
services;
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Publicity

(10) to hold, conduct or promote meetings, conferences, lectures, exhibitions
or training courses and to disseminate information to publicise the work of
the Organisation and other similar organisations;

(11) to promote or carry out research and publish the results of it;

Contracts

(12) to co-operate with and enter into contracts with any person, including the
Council;

Bank or Building Society Accounts

(13) to draw, make, accept, endorse discount, execute and issue promissory
notes, bills, cheques and other instruments and to operate bank or
building society accounts in the name of the Organisation;

Borrowing and Loans

(14) subject to the prior written consent of the Council and to such consents
as may be required by law to borrow money, to issue loan stock or raise
money in such manner as the Organisation shall think fit and to secure
the repayment of any money borrowed raised or owing by such security
as the Organisation shall see fit (including by way of floating charge)
upon the whole or any part of the Organisation’s property or assets
(whether present or future) and also by giving similar security to secure
and guarantee the performance by the Organisation of any obligation or
liability it may undertake or which may become binding on it;

Insurance

(15) to insure the assets of the Organisation to such amount and on such
terms as the Board decides, to pay premiums out of income or capital
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and to use any insurance proceeds as the Board decides (without
necessarily having to restore the asset);

(16) to insure and indemnify its employees and voluntary workers from and
against all risks incurred in the proper performance of their duties;
(17) to take out insurance to protect the Organisation and those who use
premises owned by or let or hired to the Organisation;
(18) to take out indemnity insurance to cover the liability of the Board
Members and officers of the Organisation who are not Board Members
but this insurance may not extend to:

a. any claim arising from any act or omission which a Board Member or
officer knew was a breach of duty or breach of trust or which was
committed by a Board Member or officer in reckless disregard of
whether it was a breach of duty or breach of trust or not; or

b. the costs of an unsuccessful defence to a criminal prosecution brought
against a Board Member or officer in his capacity as a Board Member
or officer of the Organisation.

Investments

(19) to invest the money of the Organisation in any investments, shares,
securities or property (real or personal) of any nature (including
investments involving liability and those not producing income) and in any
location that the Board decides;

(20) to delegate to an investment manager power at their discretion to buy
and sell investments for the Organisation in accordance with the
investments policy laid down by the Board;
(21) to make such arrangements as the Board thinks fit for any investments of
the Organisation or income from those investments to be held by a
corporate body which is incorporated in England and Wales (or which has
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established a branch or a place of business in England and Wales) as the
Organisation’s nominee and to pay remuneration to that corporate body;
(22) subject to such consents as may be required by law and compliance with
all formal guidance issued by the Organisation’s regulators (if any) to
purchase or otherwise acquire or encourage or promote and in any way
support or aid the establishment and development of any subsidiary, or
any other body established for the purposes of carrying on any trade or
business either for the purpose of raising funds for the Organisation or for
the furtherance of the objects of the Organisation;
(23) to make donations, grants or loans to such persons and organisations
and on such terms as the Board shall think fit to further the objects of the
Organisation;.

Other Organisations

(24) to establish, promote, assist or support (financially or otherwise) any
trusts, companies, industrial and provident societies, associations or
institutions which have purposes which include any one or more of its
objects;

(25) to co-operate or join with any voluntary body or public or statutory
authority in any location whatsoever in furthering its objects or allied
purposes, to exchange information and advice and to undertake joint
activities with them;
(26) to provide services or assistance to such persons and organisations as
permitted by the objects of the Organisation and on such terms as the
Board shall think fit to further those objects;
(27) to amalgamate with any organisation which has objects similar to its
objects;
(28) to affiliate, register, subscribe to or join any relevant organisation;
(29) to act as agent or trustee for any organisation;
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Reserves

(30) to accumulate income in order to set aside funds for special purposes or
as reserves against future expenditure;

Formation expenses

(31) to pay the costs of forming the Organisation and of complying with all
relevant registration requirements;

General

(32) to do anything else within the law which promotes or helps to promote its
objects.

5.

The Organisation shall not, without the prior written consent of the Council,
have the power to:

(1)

2

6.

enter into any transaction which may affect:
a.

the Council’s affordable borrowing limits as determined from time
to time by the Council under section 3 of the Local Government
Act 2003;

b.

any borrowing limits set by the Secretary of State under section
4 of the Local Government Act 2003 either in relation to the
Council’s borrowing limits or the limits of local authorities in
general; or

c.

the Council’s compliance with the Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities published by CIPFA as amended or
reissued from time to time; or

invest or make any arrangements to invest sums other than in a building
society or bank.

APPLICATION OF INCOME AND PROPERTY

The income and property of the Organisation shall be applied solely towards
the promotion of its objects as set forth in the Memorandum of Association and
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no portion thereof shall be paid or transferred, directly or indirectly, save as
provided below by way of dividend, bonus or otherwise howsoever by way of
profit, to the Council and no Board Member shall be appointed to any office of
the Organisation paid by salary or fees or receive any remuneration or other
benefit or money or money's worth from the Organisation PROVIDED THAT
nothing herein shall prevent any payment in good faith by the Organisation:-

(1)

Of reasonable and proper remuneration (including pensions, contributory

Commented [MH1]: Does this contradict para (1) below?
DA – No, the way this clause works is that the initial paragraph
sets out the general position – which is that no Board Member
or the Council can benefit financially, and then the remainder
of the clause sets out a series of exceptions.

pension payments, payment of premiums to pension policies and terminal
grants and gratuities) to any officer or employee of the Organisation (not
being a Board Member) in return for any services rendered to the
Organisation. For the avoidance of doubt, Senior Executives may serve
as Board Members pursuant to Article 13.5, but no other Board Members
may receive any benefit under this Clause 6 (1);

(2)

Commented [DA2]: This clause allows CBH to pay staff, but
the current drafting prevents staff from being Board Members.
This is contrary to the new position of Senior Officers being on
the Board. I appreciate that my previous amendment could be
clearer, so I have amended the wording.

Of fees, remuneration or other benefit in money or money's worth to a
company of which a Board Member may be a member holding not more
than 2% of the share capital of the company;

(3)

To any Board Member of reasonable out-of pocket expenses and such
other sums including payment for acting as a Board Member, Chair or
Vice Chair as may be determined by the Board PROVIDED THAT

(a) no sum shall be paid to a Board Member in excess of that which
would be permitted to be paid to a Board Member pursuant to any
guidance issued from time to time by Communities and Local
Government

or

such

other

of

Her

Majesty’s

Government

Departments relating to the payment of Board Members of Arms
Length Management Organisations;

(b) no sum shall be paid to a Board Member in excess of any maximum
amount set by the Council from time to time; and
(c) no sum shall be paid to a Board Member who is an elected member
of the Council in excess of that permitted by the Order;
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(4)

Of sums due in respect of indemnity insurance for Board Members under
Clause 4(17);

(5)

Of reasonable and proper remuneration to the Council or employees
thereof (not being Board Members) in return for any services rendered to
the Organisation;

(6)

Of reasonable and proper rent for premises demised or let by the
Council;

(7)

Of reasonable and proper interest on money lent by the Council

PROVIDED FURTHER THAT nothing shall prevent the Organisation from
managing a property in accordance with its objects (including the full range of
activities it may undertake) notwithstanding the fact that the tenant, lessee or
licensee (or prospective tenant, lessee or licensee) of such property may be a
Board Member SUBJECT TO the proviso that any Board Member who is a
beneficiary of the Organisation shall not be entitled to speak in any debate or
cast his/her vote in respect of any matter relating solely to the property of which
he is lessee, licensee or tenant and shall absent himself/herself from such
proceedings but such Board Member shall be entitled to speak and vote in
respect of matters which relate not only to such property but also to other
properties managed by the Organisation.

7.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

The Organisation shall at all times take into consideration the principles of
equality of opportunity irrespective of age, gender, race, nationality, ethnic
origin, religion, sexual orientation or disability.

8.

LIMITED LIABILITY

The liability of the Member is limited.

9.

MEMBERS GUARANTEE
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The Member undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Organisation, in the
event of the same being wound up while he is a member of the Organisation, or
within one year after he ceases to be a member of the Organisation, for
payment of the debts and liabilities of the Organisation contracted before he
ceases to be a member of the Organisation, and of the costs, charges and
expenses of winding up, and for the adjustment of the rights of the
contributories among themselves, such amount as may be required not
exceeding one pound.

10.

WINDING UP

If, upon the winding up or dissolution of the Organisation, there remains, after
the satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities any property whatsoever, the same
shall be paid or transferred to the Housing Revenue Account (as defined in the
1989 Act) of the Council.

11.

DEFINITIONS

(a)

“Order” shall mean the Local Authorities (Companies) Order 1995 as
amended or re-enacted from time to time;

(b)

“the 1989 Act” shall mean the Local Government and Housing Act 1989
as amended or re-enacted from time to time;

(c)

“Prudential Code” means the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance
in Local Authorities.

(d)

terms defined in the Articles of Association of the Organisation shall have
the same meaning in this Memorandum of Association.
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I am the subscriber to the Memorandum of Association and wish to be joined
into a company in pursuance of the Memorandum.

Name and Address of Subscriber Authorised Representative

Witnessed

Commented [MH3]: In the Mgt Agreement this will be Matt
Sterling… would this be CBC CEO legally?

Colchester Borough Council
Town Hall
Colchester
Commented [MH4]: Update to Rowan House Address:
Rowan House
33 Sheepen Road
Colcehster
Essex
CO3 3WG

CO1 1GL

Commented [DA5]: There is no need to change any of these
references, as they refer to the original decision to create the
company – which is a matter of historical record – not to the
adoption of the new M&A.

Dated
Witnessed by
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Company No. 4843624

THE COMPANIES ACTS 1985, 1989 AND 2006

___________________________________________

COMPANY LIMITED BY GUARANTEE
AND NOT HAVING A SHARE CAPITAL
___________________________________________

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

-of-

COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES LIMITED

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.

In the Articles unless the context otherwise requires:

"the Act"

Means the Companies Act 2006 including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
for the time being in force

"the Articles"

Means

these

Articles

of

Association

as

originally adopted or as altered from time to
time.

"Board"

Means

the

Board

of

directors

of

the

Organisation from time to time.

"Board Members"

Means the directors for the time being of the
Organisation.
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“Chair Appointment Panel”

Means a panel set up by the Board for the
purpose of recruiting the Chair pursuant to
Article 14.

"Chairman"

Means the Chairman of the Organisation
appointed pursuant to Article 14 or in his
absence

any

vice

or

deputy

chairman

appointed pursuant to Article 32.

"clear days"

In relation to the period of a notice means that
period excluding the day when the notice is
given or deemed to be given and the day for
which it is given or on which it is to take effect.

"Council"

Means Colchester Borough Council or any
successor body thereto who shall be the sole
member of the Organisation.

"Council Board Member"

Means a Board Member appointed by the
Council pursuant to Article 15.

"executed"

Means in relation to any contract, agreement or
other document consent thereto and includes
any mode of execution.

"Independent Board Member"

Means a Board Member appointed pursuant to
Article 17.

“Leaseholder”

Means an individual who is not a secure tenant
and both holds a lease and occupies the
residential property which is the subject of that
lease where the freehold belongs to the
Council.

"Local Authority Person"

Means any person:
i.

who is a member of the Council; or
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ii.

who is an officer of the Council (which for
these

purposes

employees

shall

without

a

not

include

supervisory

or

managerial role apart from employees
responsible for monitoring the activities of
or providing advice to the Organisation or
who perform duties in relation to the
Council’s housing functions).

"Office"

Means

the

registered

office

of

the

Organisation.
“the Organisation”

Means Colchester Borough Homes Limited.

“the seal”

Means the common seal of the Organisation

"Secretary"

Means the secretary of the Organisation or any
other person appointed to perform the duties of
the secretary of the Organisation, including a
joint, assistant or deputy secretary.

“Senior Executives”

Means the chief executive officer and the chief
financial officer of the Organisation and any
other members of the Directors Management
Team as agreed by the Board in consultation
with the Council

"Tenant"

Means an individual who occupies a residential
property belonging to the Council under a
secure tenancy agreement or a lease of
residential property of the Council

"Tenant Board Member"

Means a Board Member appointed pursuant to
Article 16.
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“Tenants Representative Body” Means such body as the Board may resolve to
be the representative of the tenants of the
Council whose dwellings are managed by the
Organisation.

"the United Kingdom"

2.

(1)

Means Great Britain and Northern Ireland.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions

contained in these regulations bear the same meaning as in the Act but
excluding any statutory modification thereof not in force when these
regulations become binding on the Organisation.
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ADMISSION OF MEMBERS

3.

No person other than the Council shall be admitted to membership of the
Organisation.

4.

The Council shall nominate a person to act as its representative in the manner
provided in Section 323 of the Companies Act 2006. Such representative shall
have the right on behalf of the Council to attend meetings of the Organisation
and vote thereat, and generally exercise all rights of membership on behalf of
the Council. The Council may from time to time revoke the nomination of such
representative, and nominate another representative in his place. All such
nominations and revocations shall be in writing.

5.

The rights of the Council shall be personal and shall not be transferable.

GENERAL MEETINGS AND RESOLUTIONS

6.

All general meetings other than annual general meetings shall be called
extraordinary general meetings.

7.

The Board Members may call general meetings and, on the requisition of the
Council pursuant to the provisions of the Act, shall forthwith proceed to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for a date not later than eight weeks
after receipt of the requisition. If there are not within the United Kingdom
sufficient Board Members to call a general meeting, any Board Member or the
Council may call a general meeting.

8.

(1)

An annual general meeting or any extraordinary general meeting not
called on the requisition of the Council pursuant to Article 7 shall be
called by at least fourteen clear days’ notice or by shorter notice if it is
so agreed by the Council in writing.

(2)

The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting and, in the
case of an annual general meeting, shall specify the meeting as such.

(3)

The notice shall be given to the Council and to the Board Members and
auditors.
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(4)

The notice shall be posted in such place as the Board decides in order
to bring it to the attention of the Tenants.

9.

The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to, or the non-receipt of
notice of a meeting by, any person entitled to receive notice shall not invalidate
the proceedings at that meeting.

10.

(1)

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum
is present.

The presence of a duly authorised representative of the

Council shall be a quorum.

(2)

Tenants and Board Members may attend any annual general meeting
and may speak but may not vote.

11.

If the Council makes a decision which would be required to be taken in a
general meeting by means of a written resolution, that decision shall be valid
and effectual as if agreed by the Organisation in general meeting. Any decision
taken by the Council pursuant to this Article 11 shall be recorded in writing and
delivered by the Council to every Board Member and to the Organisation for
entry in the Organisation’s minute book.

12.

An entry stating that a resolution has been carried or lost in the approved
minutes of any meeting shall be conclusive evidence of the fact.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEMBERS

13.

(1)

The number of Board Members shall be a minimum of nine. twelve.

(2)

A minimum of three Four Board Members shall be Council Board
Members.

(3)

A minimum of three Four Board Members shall be Tenant Board
Members.
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(4)

A minimum of three Four Board Members shall be Independent Board
Members.

(5)

In addition to the above, the Board may appoint the Senior Executives
as Board Members subject to the written agreement of the Council, for
such period as the Board may determine.

(57)

No more than one half of the six Board Members shall be Tenants. Not
more than one Tenant Board Member shall be a Leaseholder.

(68)

No more than one half of the six Board Members shall be Local
Authority Persons.

(79)

In the event that the number of Board Members shall be less than the
numbers specified in this Article 13 the remaining Board Members shall
use reasonable endeavours to appoint further Board Members but, for
the avoidance of doubt, may act notwithstanding there are vacancies in
their number.

(8)

The First Board Members shall be those persons named in the
statement delivered pursuant to Section 10(2) of the Act who shall be
deemed to have been appointed under the Articles. Future Board
Members shall be appointed as provided in the Articles.

The First Tenant Board Members shall be those persons identified as Tenant Board
Members in the statement referred to in Article 13(8).

(10)

Notwithstanding any other provisions in these Articles the Council shall
have power at any time by notice in writing to the Secretary to remove
any Board Member.

APPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBER AS CHAIR

14.

(1)

The Board may invite the Chair Appointment Panel to appoint

one person as either a Tenant Board Member or an Independent Board
Member to act as Chair of the Organisation.

The Chair shall be
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recruited following an open selection process to be agreed with the
Council, but in any event the chief officer of the Council and the portfolio
holder with responsibility for housing may serve on the Chair
Appointment Panel.

(2)

The Board Member appointed as Chair shall hold office for three years
but can be reappointed by the Chair Appointment Panel for one further
period of three years.

APPOINTMENT OF COUNCIL BOARD MEMBERS BY THE COUNCIL

15.

(1)

Subject to Articles 13 and 19, the Council shall from time to time appoint
no fewer than three four persons as Council Board Members and shall
have the power to remove from office any such Board Member.

(2)

Appointment or removal pursuant to Article 15(1) shall be effected by an
instrument in writing signed by the Council and shall take effect upon
lodgement at the registered office of the Organisation or such date later
than such lodgement as may be specified in the instrument.

RETIREMENT AND SELECTION OF TENANT BOARD MEMBERS

16.

(1)

Subject to Articles 13 and 19, there are to be a minimum of three four
Tenant Board Members.

(2)

Subject to Articles 16.6 and 16.7, Tenant Board Members shall hold
office for three years and at each annual general meeting of the
Organisation the Tenant Board Members shall retire from office in the
following rotation:

Commented [DA6]: I understand the comments made by
colleagues in relation to this Article, so I have removed the
references to specific numbers in the retirement provisions.

(a)

Commented [MH7]: Concern raised by the chair on a
practical point of view for retirees and successors mid-term. Is
this covered by Casual Vacancies?

at the first annual general meeting following the adoption of these
Articles, one third of the no Tenant Board Members shall retire;

(b) at the second annual general meeting following the adoption of

DA – this is covered by the wording in 16(3) below, which
states that if someone retired mid term, then their successor is
deemed to take over their term of office, for the purposes of
working out retirement by rotation only.

these Articles, one third of the two Tenant Board Members shall
retire; and
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(c) at the third annual general meeting following the adoption of these
Articles, the remaining a further two Tenant Board Members shall
retire

and so forth such that the Tenant Board Members shall subsequently
retire in a rotation which mirrors that in sub-paragraphs (a) to (c). The
decision as to which of the four Tenant Board Members are to serve
for which of the periods set out in Article 16(2)(a) to (c) is to be
determined by the length of time they have served as Board Members
and, for Tenant Board Members who have served for the same length
of time, by lot.

(3)

The Tenant Board Members to retire at any such subsequent annual
general meeting shall be those who have been longest in office since
they last became Tenant Board Members, but as between persons who
became Board Members on the same day those to retire shall be
chosen by agreement between the Tenant Board Members or, failing
such agreement, by lot PROVIDED THAT where a Tenant Board
Member is appointed as a consequence of the death or retirement
(other than by operation of this sub-paragraph) of another Tenant Board
Member (“the Predecessor”) under Articles 18(4) to 18(5) inclusive, the
period of time for which the Tenant Board Member shall have held office
shall, for the purposes only of this Article 16(3), be deemed to include
the period since the appointment of the Predecessor.

(4)

Prior to every annual general meeting where Tenant Board Members
are due to retire, an open selection process shall be conducted for the
number of Tenants to be appointed thereat. Only Tenants shall be
eligible to be appointed as Tenant Board Members. A Tenant Board
Member retiring in accordance with Article 16(2) may put themselves
forward for selection for a second term of office of three years and is
eligible to be re-appointed as a Tenant Board Member. A Tenant Board
Member who has served two continuous three year terms of office may
only be selected for re-appointment if the Board so resolve. Otherwise
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the mode of the selection process shall be as the Board may from time
to time agree subject at all times to compliance with Article 13.

(5)

The Secretary shall announce the results of the selection process
referred to in Article 16(4) at each relevant annual general meeting and
the Tenants so selected shall be duly appointed as Tenant Board
Members.

(6)

Where the Chair is a Tenant Board Member, then the provisions of this
Article in relation to retirement by rotation and reappointment shall apply
to the remaining three Tenant Board Members only, and in particular
Article 16(2) (b) shall be construed such that only the remaining one
Tenant Board Members are taken into account when considering the
number of Tenant Board Members to will retire pursuant to that Article.

(7)

Where:
(a) there are similar numbers of Tenant Board Members, Council Board
Members

and

Independent

Board

Membersfour

Tenant

Board

Members; and
(b) a new Chair is appointed under Article 14 who is a Tenant;
then one of the current Tenant Board Members shall be deemed to
cease to hold office. In the absence of agreement between the Tenant
Board Members as to that person, lots shall be drawn.

RETIREMENT AND APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBERS

17.

(1)

Subject to Articles 17.3, 17.4 and 17.5, the Board Members who are
Independent Board Members shall cease to hold office when they have
completed a three year term.

(2)

The Board may agree a selection process and appoint such person as it
may choose to fill any vacancy for an Independent Board Member,
which process shall involve the chief officer of the Council and/or the
portfolio holder with responsibility for housing.

Independent Board

Members appointed by the Board shall hold office for a period of three
years but may be re-appointed subject to Article 17(3).
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(3)

If, on the expiry of the first or second three year term of office of an
Independent Board Member the retiring Board Member is willing to act
then the Board may reappoint the Board Member concerned..

(4)

Where the Chair is an Independent Board Member, then the provisions
of this Article in relation to retirement and reappointment shall apply to
the remaining three Independent Board Members only.

(5)

Where:
(a) there are similar numbers of four Independent Board Members,
Council Board Members and Tenant Board Members; and
(b) a new Chair is appointed under Article 14 who is to be an
Independent Board Member;
then one of the current Independent Board Members shall be deemed
to cease to hold office. In the absence of agreement between the
Independent Board Members as to that person, lots shall be drawn.

CASUAL VACANCIES

18.

Subject to Articles 13, 14 and 19, vacancies on the Board may only be filled
according to the following:-

(1)

For Council Board Members, by the Council. If the Council shall have
failed within three months of a written request by the Board to make the
appropriate appointments to the Board of a Council Board Member, the
Board may fill the vacancies solely until the next annual general
meeting;

(2)

For Independent Board Members, and Senior Executives, by the Board
following such process as the Board may from time to time approve;

(3)

If the Board fails to make an appointment within six months of a
vacancy for an Independent Board Member, the Council may appoint
any person who is willing to act as an Independent Board Member to
the vacancy solely until the next annual general meeting;
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(4)

For Tenant Board Members, where there remains more than one year
until retirement, by the Board following such appointing the most
suitable candidate from the results of the previous selection process as
the Board shall reasonably determine. If the candidate does not wish to
take up the appointment it shall be offered to the subsequent most
suitable candidate and so on until an appointment is made.

(5)

For Tenant Board Members where there remains one year or less until
retirement by the Board.

DISQUALIFICATION AND REMOVAL OF BOARD MEMBERS

19.

A person shall be ineligible for appointment to the Board and if already
appointed shall immediately cease to be a Board Member if the relevant
individual:-

(1)

ceases to be a Board Member by virtue of any provision of the Act or
becomes prohibited by law from being a company director; or

(2)

is or becomes a person disqualified from elected membership of a local
authority; or

(3)

becomes bankrupt or makes any arrangement or composition with his
creditors generally; or

(4)

is receiving medical treatment and a registered medical practitioner who
is treating that person gives a written opinion to the company stating
that that person has become physically or mentally incapable of acting
as a director and may remain so for more than three months; or

(5)

resigns his office by notice to the Organisation; or

(6)

is removed from office by a resolution of (or written notice signed by) at
least three quarters of all the other Board Members from time to time
provided that the Board Member concerned has first been given an
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opportunity to state why he should not be removed as a Board Member;
or
(7)

is found by resolution of the Board (such resolution to be passed with a
two thirds majority) following an appropriate investigation process to
have breached any agreed code of conduct for Board Members or to
have otherwise conducted themselves in a manner which is materially
detrimental to the interests of the Organisation, provided that the Board
Member concerned has first been given an opportunity to state why he
should not be so removed;

(8)

shall for more than six consecutive months have been absent without
permission of the Board from meetings of the Board held during that
period and the Board resolves that his office be vacated; or

(9)

in any period of 12 months, he shall have been absent (without the
permission of the Board Members) from at least 60% of the meetings of
Board Members held during that period and the Board Members resolve
that his office be vacated; or

(10)

in the case of a Tenant Board Member he ceases to be a Tenant
PROVIDED THAT this Article 19(9) shall not apply in respect of a
Tenant Board Member temporarily ceasing to be a Tenant as a result of
the demolition of or works carried out to that Tenant Board Member’s
home; or

(11)

is a Tenant Board Member and is, (in the reasonable opinion of at least
three quarters of all the other Board Members) in serious breach of their
obligations as a Tenant (where “serious breach” means a breach that
has led to the service of a notice of intention to seek possession); or

(12)

is a Council Board Member and is or becomes a Tenant leading to a
breach of the limit in Article 13(5); or

(13)

is a Tenant Board Member and is or becomes a Local Authority Person
leading to a breach of the limit in Article 13(6); or

(14)

is a Tenant Board Member and is or becomes a Leaseholder leading to
a breach of the limit in Article 13(5); or
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(15)

is a Tenant Board Member and becomes an Independent Board
Member leading to a breach of the limit in Article 13(4); or

(16)

is an Independent Board Member and is or becomes a Tenant or a
Local Authority Person; or

(17)

is removed by resolution of the Council pursuant to Article 13(10) ; or

(18)

is a Leaseholder and is or becomes an Independent Board Member
leading to a breach of the limit in Article 13(4) ; or

(19)

is a Tenant Board Member and is appointed to serve on the executive
committee of the Tenants Representative Body; or

(20)

has served as a Board Member for a period of 9 years without a break
of more than 12 months, unless the Board resolves that the person
concerned should not cease to hold office; or

(21)
(22)

being the Chair, has served as Chair for a period of six years; or
being a Senior Executive, is removed from office by resolution of the
Board; or

(21)(23) being a Senior Executive when appointed as a Board Member, ceases
to be employed by the Organisation in that capacity;
(22)(24) is deemed to cease to hold office under Articles 15.4, 16.7 or 17.5.

Where a person is under investigation for a potential serious breach of their
obligations either as a Tenant or Board Member, the Chair or Vice Chair may
suspend a member of the Board from meetings whilst the investigation is taking
place. The suspension to be for not more than 8 weeks, and must be reviewed
at the next available Board meeting where any further suspension must be
approved by a simple majority of the Board.

POWERS OF THE BOARD
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20.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, directions of the Council in general meeting
and the Memorandum and the Articles, the business of the Organisation shall
be managed by the Board who may exercise all the powers of the
Organisation, save that the Board may only appoint a chief executive with the
consent of the Council and following such process as may be agreed between
the Council and the Organisation, including the chief officer of the Council
and/or the portfolio holder with responsibility for housing taking part on any
appointment panel. No alteration of the Memorandum or Articles or directions
of the Council shall invalidate any prior act of the Board which would have been
valid if that alteration had not been made. The powers given by this Article shall
not be limited by any special power given to the Board by the Articles and a
meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present may exercise all powers
exercisable by the Board.

21.

The Board may, by power of attorney or otherwise, appoint any person to be
the agent of the Organisation for such purposes and on such conditions as they
determine, including authority for the agent to delegate all or any of his powers.

BORROWING POWERS

22.

Subject to Clauses 4(14) and 5 of the Memorandum the Board may exercise all
the powers of the Organisation to borrow money without limit as to amount and
upon such terms and in such manner as they think fit, and to grant any
mortgage, charge or other security over its undertaking and property, or any
part thereof, and to issue any debenture, whether outright or as security for any
debt, liability or obligation of the Organisation or of any third party.

DELEGATION OF BOARD MEMBERS' POWERS

23.

(1)

The Board may delegate any of their powers to any committee
consisting of such persons the Board considers fit to exercise such
powers. They may also delegate to the Chairman/or any vice or deputy
Chairman or to any executive officer such of their powers as they
consider desirable to be exercised by him.
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(2)

Any such delegation may be made subject to any conditions the Board
may impose, and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of their own
powers and may be revoked or altered. Subject to any such conditions
and this Article, the proceedings of a committee with two or more
members shall be governed by the Articles regulating the proceedings
of the Board so far as they are capable of applying.

ALTERNATE BOARD MEMBERS

24.

No Board Member shall be entitled to appoint any person as an alternate Board
Member.

BOARD MEMBERS' EXPENSES

25.

The Board Members may be paid all travelling, hotel, and other expenses
reasonably and properly incurred by them in connection with their attendance
at meetings of the Board or committees of the Board or general meetings or
otherwise in connection with the discharge of their duties and such other sums
as may be determined by the Board PROVIDED THAT

(a)

no sum shall be paid to a Board Member in excess of that which would
be permitted to be paid to a Board Member pursuant to any guidance
issued from time to time by Communities and Local Government or such
other of Her Majesty’s Government Departments relating to the payment
of Board Members of Arms Length Management Organisations;

(a)(b) no sum shall be paid to a Senior Executive who is a Board Member which
he or she is also entitled to claim in their capacity as an employee of the
Organisation;

(b)(c) no sum shall be paid to a Board Member in excess of any maximum
amount set by the Council from time to time; and
(c)(d) no sum shall be paid to a Board Member who is an elected member of
the Council in excess of that permitted by the Order.
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BOARD MEMBERS' APPOINTMENTS AND INTERESTS

26.

A Board Member may not have any financial interest personally or as a
member of a firm or as a director or senior employee (being an employee with
managerial status) in any contract or other transaction of the Organisation
unless it is permitted by these Articles and is not prohibited by Clause 5 of the
Memorandum.

27.

Each Board Member shall ensure that the Secretary has at all times an up to
date list of:-

(1)

all bodies trading in which he or she has an interest as:

(a)

a director or senior employee,

(b)

a member or partner of a firm,

(c)

the owner or controller of more than 2% of the issued share capital
in a company,

(2)

all interests as an official or elected member of any statutory body;

(3)

all interests as the occupier of any property owned or managed by the
Organisation;

(4)

any other significant or material interest.

PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD MEETINGS

28.

(1)

Subject to any regulations established from time to time by the

Organisation in general meeting and compliance with Section 10(1) of the Local
Authorities (Companies Order) 1995 the Board may regulate their proceedings
as they think fit and the quorum for the transaction of the business of the Board
at the time when the meeting proceeds to business shall be four comprising no
fewer than one Tenant Board Member, one Independent Board Member, one
Council Board Member and one other Board Member PROVIDED THAT if
either the number of Board Members in one or more category of Board Member
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falls below one or all the Board Members in one or more category are
prevented from counting towards the quorum by Article 30 then the quorum
requirement shall be reduced to none in respect of such category or categories.

(2)

33 1/3 percent of the total number of Board Members (or such whole
number of Board Members nearest to 33 1/3 percent) may call a meeting
of the Board. It shall not be necessary to give notice of a meeting to a
Board Member who is absent from the United Kingdom.

(3)

If a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for
a Board Meeting the Board Meeting shall, if requested by a majority of
those Board Members present, be adjourned to the same day in the next
week at the same time and place or to such other day and at such other
time and place as the Board Members present may determine.

(4)

If at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour
from the time appointed for the meeting then notwithstanding Article 28(1)
the Board Members present shall constitute a quorum.

29.

(1)

Questions arising at a Board Meeting shall be decided by a majority of
votes and each Board Member present in person shall be entitled to one
vote.

(2)

If there is an equality of votes the Chairman is entitled to a second or
casting vote.

30.

(1)

Any Board Member having an interest in any arrangement between the
Organisation and another person or body shall disclose that interest to
the meeting before the matter is discussed by the Board or committee of
the Board. Unless the interest is of the type specified in Articles 30(2) or
30(3) the Board Member concerned shall not remain present during the
discussion of that item unless requested to do so by the remaining
members of the Board or committee of the Board. Unless permitted by
Articles 30(2) or 30(3) the Board Member concerned may not vote on the
matter in question, but no decision of the Board or any committee of the
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Board shall be invalidated by the subsequent discovery of an interest
which should have been declared.

(2)

Provided the interest has been properly disclosed pursuant to Article
30(1) a Board Member may remain present during the discussion and
may vote on the matter under discussion where the interest arises
because:

(a)

the Board Member is a Tenant so long as the matter in question
affects all or a substantial group of Tenants; or

(b)

the Board Member is a director or other officer of a company or
body which is a parent, subsidiary or associate of the
Organisation; or

(c)

the Board Member is an official or elected member of any
statutory body.

(3)

A Board Member shall not be treated as having an interest:

(a)

of which the Board Member has no knowledge and of which it is
unreasonable to expect him to have knowledge;

(b)

in the establishment of a policy in respect of Board Member
expenses payable pursuant to Article 25.

31.

If a question arises at a meeting of the Board or of a committee of the Board as
to the right of a Board Member to vote, the question may, before the conclusion
of the meeting, be referred to the chairman of the meeting and his ruling in
relation to any Board Member other than himself shall be final and conclusive.

32.

(1)

Unless he is unwilling to do so, the Chair appointed under Article 14 shall
preside at every meeting of the Board at which he is present. But if there
is no Board Member holding that office, or if the Board Member holding it
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is unwilling to preside or is not present within five minutes after the time
appointed for the meeting, the Board Members present may appoint one
of their number to be chairman of the meeting.

(2)

The Board may appoint one or two vice or deputy chairmen to act in the
absence of the Chairman on such terms as the Board shall think fit.

33.

All acts done by a meeting of the Board, or of a committee of the Board or by a
person acting as a Board Member shall, notwithstanding that it be afterwards
discovered that there was a defect in the appointment of any Board Member or
that any of them were disqualified from holding office, or had vacated office, or
were not entitled to vote, be as valid as if every such person had been duly
appointed and was qualified and had continued to be a Board Member and had
been entitled to vote.

WRITTEN RESOLUTION

34.

A resolution in writing signed by:

(1)

three quarters of all the Board Members entitled to receive notice of a
meeting of the Board or of a committee of the Board; and

(2)

the Chairman of the Organisation or of the relevant committee; and which
satisfies the quorum requirements of Article 28(1) shall be as valid and
effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or (as the
case may be) a committee of the Board duly convened and held and may
consist of several documents in the like form each signed by one or more
Board Members.

OBSERVERS

35.

The Board may allow individuals who are not Board members to attend Board
Meetings as observers on whatever basis they decide. Observers may not vote
but may take part in discussions with the prior consent of the chairman of the
meeting. The Board may exclude observers from any part of a Board Meeting
where the Board considers the business is private and must exclude an
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observer when considering a possible personal benefit to him or where the
Organisation has an obligation to treat information confidentially.

SECRETARY

36.

Subject to the provisions of the Act, a Secretary and a deputy or alternate
Secretary may be appointed by the Board for such term, at such remuneration
and upon such conditions as they may think fit and any Secretary so appointed
may be removed by them.

MINUTES

37.

The Board shall cause minutes to be made in books kept for the purpose:-

(1)

of all appointments of officers made by the Board Members; and

(2)

of all proceedings at meetings of the Organisation and of the Board, and
of committees of the Board and of the Council in its capacity as the sole
member of the Organisation, including the names of the Board Members
present at each such meeting.

RECORDS ACCOUNTS AND RETURNS

38.

The Organisation shall comply with the provisions of Part V of the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989, the Local Authorities (Companies) Order
1995 and Part VII of the Act in respect of:-

(1)

the keeping and auditing of accounting records;

(2)

the provision of accounts and annual reports of the Board Members; and

(3)

in making an annual return.

THE SEAL
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39.

(1)

If the Organisation has a seal it shall only be used with the specific or
general authority of the Board or of a committee of the Board. The Board
may determine who shall sign any instrument to which the seal is affixed
and unless otherwise so determined it shall be signed by a Board
Member and by the Secretary or a second Board Member.

(2)

The Organisation may exercise the powers conferred by Section 39 of
the Act with regard to having an official seal for use abroad, and such
powers shall be vested in the Board Members.

NOTICES

40.

Any notice to be given to or by any person pursuant to the Articles shall be in
writing except that a notice calling a meeting of the Board or of a committee of
the Board need not be in writing.

41.

The Organisation may give any notice to the Council either personally or by
sending it by post in a prepaid envelope addressed to the Council at their
registered address or by leaving it at that address.

42.

The Council present by duly authorised representative at any meeting of the
Organisation shall be deemed to have received notice of the meeting and,
where requisite, of the purposes for which it was called.

43.

Proof that an envelope containing a notice was properly addressed, prepaid
and posted shall be conclusive evidence that the notice was given. A notice
shall be deemed to be given at the expiration of 48 hours after the envelope
containing it was posted.

INDEMNITY

44.

(1)

Every Board Member or other officer of the Organisation shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Organisation against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto, including any liability
incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgement is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in
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connection with any application under Section 727 of the Act in which
relief is granted to him and no Board Member or other officer shall be
liable for any loss, damage or misfortune which may happen to or be
incurred by the Organisation in the execution of the duties of his office or
in relation thereto PROVIDED THAT this Article shall only have effect in
so far as its provisions are not avoided by Section 232 of the Companies
Act 2006.

(2)

The Board shall have power to purchase and maintain for any Board
Member or officer of the Organisation insurance against any such liability
as is referred to in Section 232 of the Companies Act 2006.

Names & Addresses Authorised Representative Witnessed
Of Subscriber
Colchester Borough Council
Town Hall
Colchester
Commented [MH8]: Update Address

CO1 1GL

DA – again – not necessary as the signing and witnessing of
the original Articles is a matter of record.

Dated
Witnessed by
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REPORT TO COLCHESTER BOROUGH HOMES BOARD

DATE:

2 November 2017

TIME:

6:00pm

VENUE:

Officers’ Club, St. John’s Green CO2 7EZ

AGENDA ITEM:

AGM 9

SUBJECT:

Resident Engagement Annual Review 2016-17

REPORT BY:

Kathy Fitzgerald (Housing Manager)
 (01206) 282746
 Kathy.fitzgerald@cbhomes.org.uk

FOR INFORMATION
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1

To provide the Board with an annual review of Resident Engagement for
2016-17.

2.

Background & Content

2.1

Following the review and restructure of the Resident Involvement Team in
2016, the lead officer for Resident Engagement is Kathy Fitzgerald and there
is one Resident Engagement Officer, Polly Hardy. The Resident Insight and
Engagement Strategy 2016-19 was approved by the Board in September
2016. This report includes a short overview of this new Strategy, and the
progress made up until March 2017 by including some of the highlights from
2016-17.

2.2

The key aim of the new Strategy is to embed meaningful resident
engagement across all service areas. Kathy and Polly co-ordinate and
develop processes that enable and support resident engagement, and the use
of customer insight across the organisation in order to target our services
more effectively.

2.3

Under the Strategy, we aim to:




Improve how we gather information and how we use it – to better reflect
the views of residents and customers by better use of customer insight
Develop a more fluid range of ways for residents to be involved and to
influence the services we deliver
Develop those service-related groups with the best outcomes ( such as the
Leasehold Focus Group), but also make better use of social media, market
research and surveys to provide more statistically-sound evidence on
which to develop services
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2.4

Embed structures across the organisation to measure the impact of
resident engagement, and monitor the outcomes of opportunities to
influence
Strengthen scrutiny to provide more resident influence, and ensure that
residents have an accountable role in Board decisions

The new Strategy took resident engagement on an exciting new journey from
‘involvement to insight, influence and impact’. This new direction would enable
Colchester Borough Homes to:




Ensure accountability
Develop thriving communities
Listen to Customers to Improve services and increase satisfaction

This report will demonstrate how we are moving forward with these key
objectives.
3.

Ensuring Accountability

3.1

Scrutiny
Following the launch of the new Strategy, we re-launched the former Tenancy
and Leaseholder Consultative Committee (TLCC) as the CBH Scrutiny Panel
- to better reflect the role of the panel in scrutinising services. We engaged the
support of CCVS to assist with developing the panel, to make it more
accessible to new members and to improve the Scrutiny Panel’s
representation of tenant views to the Board

3.2

Although the membership was low at this stage, the group successfully
completed their fourth scrutiny topic, on the Tenancy Audit programme, in
September 2016. The review examined the benefits of CBH undertaking
tenancy audits, the resources needed, and the outcomes. The Panel made a
number of detailed recommendations which supported the business case put
forward by CBH to continue the service. The panel commenced their fifth
scrutiny topic on Temporary Accommodation with confidence and enthusiasm
in February 2017.

3.3

Task and finish
This format is a tried and tested means of ensuring tenants are influencing
policy and influencing the emerging changes which impact significantly on
residents both current and future. During 2016-17, task and finish events
were held on Fixed Term tenancies and on Tenant Alterations. Both were well
attended and provided valuable customer feedback to inform how CBH
implement new and changing policies. We are continuing to hold task and
finish events that are topic-focussed to ensure that outcomes are measured
and evaluated, and to demonstrate the impact of resident engagement.

3.4

Leasehold Focus Group
This group went from strength to strength during 2016-17. Impact
assessments are completed for each meeting, to ensure that they are
outcome focussed.

124

Ten leaseholders have been involved and attended focus group meetings.
Topics including developing the website to include better information for
leaseholders, the delivering and charging for major works, responsibilities for
repairs and alterations and the efficiency of leasehold management through
review of performance information.
4.

Developing Thriving Communities

4.1

Community Fund
At the start of 2016-17, we introduced a new format for promoting and
allocating the Community Fund. A series of tenant-led and participatory
voting events took place across the Borough, resulting in the budget of £40k
being fully allocated and spent at the end of the year. We had positive
feedback from these events, and have continued with this participatory
approach – with a focus on linking with existing resident engagement
opportunities, to ensure that wherever possible it is CBH tenants that are
voting, and benefiting from the projects being funded.
More detail is provided in the Community Fund 2016-17 report in Appendix 1

4.2

Make a Difference Days
The Make a Difference Day programme 2016-17 followed a very different
approach to previous years. Each of the eight events followed a structured
and cohesive approach to ensure resident engagement before and during the
event and with feedback to residents and other stakeholders following the
event. An impact assessment for each event ensured that we have listened to
the tenant view, and that we are measuring the impact of each Make a
Difference Day. The events proved an ideal opportunity to recruit Quality
Assurance Advisors, which set us on course to focus on the development and
recruitment of QAAs in the subsequent months.
An example of one of the Make a Difference Day newsletters is in Appendix 2

5.

Improving Services and increasing customer satisfaction

5.1

In 2016-17, we started to embed structures that enable and support customer
insight and engagement across the organisation, and capture all of the many
and varied ways in which we are engaging with our customers. The Older
Persons Services team have been engaging with residents and with the local
community in a wide range of ways for some years, listening to the tenant
view and making service improvements to services as a result of this
engagement. We now actively support Older Person Services to promote and
develop resident engagement, and to measure its impact on the services
provided.

5.2

A summary of these resident engagement opportunities in Older Persons
Services in 2017-17 as follows:
 Enoch House – Throughout the refurbishment programme, prospective
tenants were closely supported through the whole application, bidding and
viewing process. Two Open Days were held with over 40 prospective
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residents viewing the show flat and the facilities and meeting staff. Nine
moves took place through the Tenant Transfer Scheme, releasing a total of
2 three- bedroom homes for families during 2016/17. The Resident
Engagement Officer supported the Older Person Services Team to develop
a Residents’ Association at Enoch House, with the aim of building a strong
community and ensuring that we continue to listen and act on the views of
the residents.
Maytree Court – Following the announcement of the closure of Maytree
Court in September 2016, a meeting was held with residents, local ward
councillors and an independent advocate from Age Concern. A team were
placed on site to meet with tenants individually and to ensure that we
listened to all concerns and subsequently monthly meetings were held to
support tenants throughout the whole decant process, and a monthly
newsletter to tenants to ensure feedback to residents and partners.
Wi-Fi – Internet installations were carried out in every sheltered scheme,
and volunteers from CCVS attended 4 schemes to offer training and
support to tenants to use smart phones, tablets and laptops.
AGMs and quarterly meetings – These are generally well attended and are
a real opportunity to listen to tenants, and feed back to tenants on the
difference their input has made to services and to their environment. The
Sheltered Quality Assurance Advisor project resulted in 12 SQAAs being
recruited across six sheltered schemes. In response to the views of the
SQAAS there was a tenant-led planting scheme at Winstree Court and
improvements to the communal space at Ivor Brown Court. As a result of
direct feedback from residents, an extensive programme of environmental
improvements was carried out across all the sheltered schemes during
2016/17.

5.3

Older Person Services has adopted an impact assessment approach to
ensure that we are measuring the impact of resident engagement, and to
ensure feedback to residents on the difference that the engagement makes to
service delivery.
Older Person Services are providing feedback to residents 6 months following
each AGM, and an example of this feedback is provided in Appendix 3

5.4

Customer Insight
During 2016-17 we started to utilise customer insight to help us understand
our customers better and to help us to target our services more effectively to
have the most impact and increase customer satisfaction.
‘Our People’ - which has been circulated separately from this report –
highlights and celebrates the diversity of our tenants and leaseholders.
Understanding our customers better is helping us to provide inclusive and
sensitive services that ensure equality of access across the organisation.
How we are using customer insight and profiling to shape our services is
demonstrated in Appendix 4.

6.

Risk Management

6.1

None
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7.

HR implications

7.1

None

8.

Legal implications

8.1

The Homes and Communities Agency published the Tenant Involvement and
Empowerment Standard in April 2012. Whilst Local Authorities are excluded
from the Financial Standards, CBH chooses to comply with the Consumer
Standards. The required outcomes include: Customer Service, Choice and
Complaints, Involvement and Empowerment and Understanding and
Responding to the diverse needs of tenants.

9.

Financial Implications

9.1

None.

10.

Value for Money

10.1 The completion of impact assessments on resident engagement opportunities
across the Organisation ensures value for money.
11.

Equality & Diversity

11.1 We continue to ensure that all our customer engagement opportunities are
aligned to our Equality Duty. Our Equality Ambassadors have a specific
Equality and Diversity role, ensuring equality of access to opportunities to
influence. We are completing equality and diversity data as part of the
evaluation of all resident activities and projects. The Scrutiny Panel is
considering the equality and diversity implications of all the strategies and
policies that they are requested to review.
12.

Residents at the Heart

12.1 The new strategy places tenants at the heart of what we do. By having a
greater understanding of our customers, we will be targeting and tailoring our
services more effectively. By embedding resident engagement across all
service areas, we are ensuring that residents are having an influence in
service delivery.
13.

Decision required?

13.1 No
14.

Appendices

14.1 The following documents are attached to this report:
Appendix 1 Community Budget Report
Appendix 2 Make a Difference Day Newsletter
Appendix 3 Older Persons Services AGM resident feedback
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AGM ITEM 9 APPENDIX 1

Highlights of the year
The Community Fund 2016/17

£40,000 budget dedicated to community funded groups and projects across
Colchester Borough
The Community Fund is tenant-led, utilising participatory budgeting events across Colchester to make
every residents vote really count! We have learned a great deal during the last year with a new improved
approach .
The Community Fund focuses on giving Colchester Borough Homes (CBH) tenants and
leaseholders real influence in decision making.




We help put ideas into action, offering responsive and accessible community support.
The projects must benefit residents of Colchester Borough Homes.



The Community Fund application should evidence the impact projects will have on the community.



Project must be inclusive, accessible and must adhere to the Equality and Diversity policy of Colchester Borough Homes.



Projects were presented in community buildings across Colchester where CBH tenants and
leaseholders have voted on the project of their choice.



Each voter was issued with one token per application and have the opportunity to vote ‘yes’ or ‘no’ in
relation to each application.
Votes were tallied and
applicants with more
‘yes’ votes than ‘no’ votes were
granted the funding.

Count
me in!
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Three series of events were held across the borough
to allocate the money across the community.

Event one

The first Community Fund event of the year was a public vote at
Greenstead Community Centre. The ‘drop in’ style evening used a
token based system that was well received by participants.
All involved tenants and leaseholders (inclusive of QAA’s) were
informed by letter about the event. Some tenants from that list were
called to try to maximise participation and the event was advertised
on social media (Facebook).


8 applications were considered for funding



20 CBH tenants and leaseholders participated in voting



£8,680.33 was allocated from the Community Fund

1

Will this be rolled out in different areas so that local people attend?

2

How much promotion is given to each project?

3

Can we have more trips for sheltered tenants in Old Heath?

4

CIF could be used to address ASB in Mersea area, litter bins? Dog fouling?

5

Could be in bigger print as poor eyesight

6

Yes and no pots I quite like but lacks a group discussion that can raise some issues I may not think about
which might change my opinions.

7

This event should be rolled out across Borough. Applications should have cash limit and be filtered out
before event.

8

Applications need to go through a filtering process before they come to the event for voting

9

I think the containers for voting should be covered up so other people’s votes do not influence others
opinions.

10
11

I like this event because it’s very friendly and like spending time with your family.
Is this a single event or will it be rolled out over other areas i.e. Monkwick and Shrub End? Otherwise it will
be a very small sample.

12

The containers should be concealed so that it does not influence voting (covered containers).

13

Lovely idea, I like that it is out in the community, Hope to see this continue!

14

Democratic, but subject to individual taste.
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Event two
Utilising successful participatory budgeting the Community Fund was taken to different locations
across the borough to improve community accessibility. Feedback was very positive from these
events and utilising existing local community groups proved particularly successful.
All involved tenants and leaseholders (inclusive of QAA’s) were informed by letter about the
programmed set of events. The event was also advertised on social media (Facebook).


5 events took place over a week long Community Fund Roadshow.



8 applications were considered for funding



53 CBH tenants and leaseholders participated in voting



£10,789.00 was allocated from the Community Fund



17 participants voted for this new style of event, none voted against

I like the venue and idea – would like different venues
Really good – like the voting columns
Easy for us elders
Great idea – great to meet people and much more inclusive – do we need the no box?
Like the voting columns
What a great idea, fun too – cake was lovely as well
Good idea – it would be good if more people aired their views – thanks for all the hard work
Shouldn’t be influenced by seeing the counters
Fun and quick way of giving my vote
Would have liked the opportunity to give feedback to my decision i.e why I said no
More ideas of where the areas are – more maps rather than keep consulting back to the main one
Excellent idea – more than what I expected – fun and lovely to meet different people at different venues
This is a better way to show in news and views that tenants can have their say – keep up the good work
Works well when considering resident participation – learning about different projects and what can be applied for
- importantly this is good advertisement for the fund itself
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Event 3
The final event of the year was located at Colchester Library. The exhibition style voting event
offered Colchester residents the opportunity to support local community groups and projects.
The venue provided a diverse representative of our mixed tenure communities along with the
most CBH voters for a single venue. The process was quick and accessible to all.
There was the most networking opportunities available at this central location.
This event was advertised by social media only.



5 applications were considered for funding



22 CBH tenants and leaseholders participated in
voting



£11,870.32 was allocated from the Community
Fund

Overall 28 applications were funded throughout the year.
95 Colchester Borough Homes tenants and leaseholders used their
opportunity to influence, and participated in allocating funding for these
projects.
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MAD Day
Update for

Update for Rectory Close,
Colchester

Prior to your MAD Day

Date: Thursday 31 March
On the day 15 members of Colchester
Borough Homes staff attended along
with CBH’s Community Caretakers
and the Rectory Close Quality
Assurance Advisor. The weather was
thankfully kind to us and provided the
team with plenty of sunshine!

What is a MAD day?
Colchester Borough Homes (CBH)
Make a Difference days are now a
regular fixture in the CBH calendar
of events. Rectory Close was the first
venue to receive a visit from the MAD
day team in 2016 starting our fifth year
of MAD days. The MAD days aim to do
as the name suggests, to simply make
a difference to you, the tenants and
residents of Rectory Close.

nks!

Highlights and Tha

ur local
	 big thank you to yo
A
n Collier
Housing Officer Kare
y and
who organised the da
gether
brought everything to
on the day
e Rectory
	 big thank you to th
• A
lin for all
Close QAA Sue Chap
ntinuing
her hard work and co
support
got
	 ank you to all that
• Th
unity spirit
involved, true comm
e day!
shone through on th

•

Led by your
Community
Housing Officer:
Karen Collier

After consultation with residents we re-tarmacked the
drying areas ready for the installation of new dryers.

Hub happenings!
During the day the CBH hub served tea and coffee along
with cakes and biscuits. Rectory Close’s Quality Assurance
Advisor Sue, helped on the day by keeping the urns full
of hot water for all the hard workers and tenants visiting
either for a Masterclass or simply to drop by and say hello.
During the day residents were able to take advantage of
various Masterclasses which included;
• Plumbing – how to change a toilet seat
• Gas Safety – boilers
• Electrical – changing a bulb in sealed bathroom fittings
• How to alleviate damp and condensation

What did we achieve?
Prior to the team arriving on site, residents were consulted
concerning what changes they would like to see. Listening
to our residents is very important to CBH and is one
of the criteria we ask for feedback on when we do our
regular STAR surveys. We are thrilled to let you know that
on the day we accomplished a great deal. Here are just a
few of the things that were done:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Installed new wooden
benches
Installed new rotary
washing lines
Litter picked and swep
t
Painted the fence in
the drying areas
Planted new shrubs
Re-planted a bare flo
wer bed with new pl
ants
Used 2 tonnes of mulc
h on the flowerbeds

More to come!
We will be returning to complete some additional planting and
mulching, tree pruning and to install some more rotary washing lines.
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Sue Chaplin, QAA for Rectory Close said,
“A very big thank you for a wonderful MAD day, it was fantastic! The front garden and fence looks fab. I have
had some great feedback from some of the residents already!”

From a Rectory Close resident,
“Yesterday we welcomed Karen and her friendly team into our cul-de-sac for a CBH MAD day, and what a
difference! It got all the able-bodied and not so able-bodied neighbours out together for coffee and cakes
and gave us a chance to air our views on what’s right and what’s not in our area. While they were here they
did work around the buildings, listened to us, and gave us an idea of future plans. All in all a very worthwhile
day, so thanks to Karen and her team for taking the time and effort.”

The day in pictures…

We hope that the visit from the CBH MAD team was of
value to you all and we urge you to get in touch with us at
communications@cbhomes.org.uk with any feedback
you may have.
Why not browse through our online gallery of works achieved
on the day which is now live at www.cbhomes.org.uk/
MadDay or view more pictures on Pinterest at
www.pinterest.com/ColBoroughHomes
If you would like to find out more or volunteer for a MAD day get in touch with us on
01206 282 444

www.cbhomes.org.uk/MadDay
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Colchester Borough Homes Limited
PO Box 7888, Colchester, CO3 3YB
Telephone (01206) 282514
DX 729040 Colchester 15

Textphone users dial 18001 followed by the
full number that you wish to call.

Contact: Visiting Officer Team
Tel: (01206) 506598

Date: 4th September 2017

Dear Tenants of Oatfield Close
Re; Feedback from AGM held on 24 February 2017
Colchester Borough Homes would like to feedback from the AGM held at
Oatfield Close with the actions agreed.
Agenda Item
Activities

Action Agreed
Visiting Officer to
investigate.

Bus Shelter’s

Rebecca to write to
Parish council.

Suggestion of a
blind at the
communal lounge
window

Rebecca to contact
Mercury blinds.

Area at back of hall
& paths to be
cleared of moss

Visiting Officer to arrange E-Mail sent to Steve
for this to be done.
Collis he has visited
the site & will arrange
for this to be done, I
have chased this up
1/9/2017 with a phone
call to Steve I left a
message, the bench
has been removed.
Rebecca to arrange this. Delivery date is
between 4.9.2017 &

Sideboard in
communal hall

Update
There is now bingo on
a Monday at 2pm,
there are lunches once
a month, there is a trip
out arranged, and the
IT sessions were very
well attended.
E-Mail has been sent
on the 17th August
2017.
Mercury blinds have
been out & measured
up, quote received
awaiting fitting date.
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needed

13.9.2017.

Ceiling in communal Visiting Officer to arrange
hall needs
for property services to
redecorating after
investigate & make good.
leak

Kim E-Mailed repairs
property services do
not paint ceilings, the
leak was fixed, the
community caretakers
are going to make
good in the near
future.
Pictures are now in the
community hall.

New pictures
needed in
community hall
Recycling bins

Yoga in community
hall

Sheltered Quality
Assurance Advisor

Rebecca to arrange for
new pictures for
community hall.
Councillor Lesley ScottBoutell is meeting with
CBC, & requesting all
tenants receive assisted
collections.
Visiting Officer to book
hall.

Oatfield Close does not
currently have a SQAA,
Visiting Officer to
promote.

All tenants now have
their wheelie bins, &
collections seem to be
going well.
The hall is booked
every Wednesday for
tenants of Oatfield
Close.
Oatfield Close now
has a SQAA Bob
Rudd (37), & we also
have a QAA Jan
Sexton (11).

Please speak to the onsite Visiting Officer if you have any further
questions.
Yours sincerely

Rebecca Johnson
Team Leader - Older Persons Services
Colchester Borough Homes
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